SOOD TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED : m I m




MASOOD TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED m I m




MASOOD TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED m

CONTENTS
Page
COMPANY INFORMATION ____ él '
NOTICE OF AN’NUAL GENERAL MEETING 5-6 |
DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ill
SIX YEAR FINANCIAL RESULTS ’ 10
VISION / MISSION STATEMENT 1_1u

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 12-13 I

REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ' 14 I
AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS 15 I
BALANCE SHEET 16-17 ||

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT ) 18 |
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 19 j|

CASH FLOW STATEMENT _ _20 |
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY ‘ 21 |I
NOTES TO TH’E FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 22-50 ll
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING | ' 51-52 ]I

____—

NAMEWISE CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS 5354_||
FORM OF PROXY | [




MASOOD TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

COMPANY INFORMATION
CHAIRMAN o MR. NASEER AHMAD SHAH
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER : MR SHAHID NAZIR AHMAD
DIRECTORS : : MR. MUHAMMAD ARSHAD

MR. MATLOOB HUSSAIN
_ MR. SHAHID IQBAL
- : MR. FAZAL AHMAD
MR. SHOAIB AHMAD KHAN

(NIT-Nominee)
COMPANY SECRETARY : MIAN ABDUL BARI
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER : MR. TANVEER AHMAD SIDDIQUI
AUDIT COi'leITTEE N : MR. FAZAL AHMAD {Chairman)

MR. MATLOOB HUSSAIN
" MR. SHAHID IQBAL

HR & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE : MR. MUHAMMAD ARSHAD (Chairman)
MR. NASEER AHMAD SHAH
MR. SHAHID IQBAL

AUDITORS : M/S. RIAZ AHMAD & COMPANY
’ CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
SHARE REGISTRAR : ORIiENT SOFTWARE & MANAGEMENT

SERVICES (PVT) LIMITED
35-Z, AMEER PLAZA, OPP: MUJAHID HOSPITAL,
COMMERGCIAL CENTRE, MADINA TOWN,
FAISALABAD.

PHONE: 041-8711930-8715759 FAX: 041-8711930

REGISTERED OFFICE _ : UNIVERSAL HOUSE, WEST CANAL ROAD,
i FARQOQABAD, FAISALABAD.
PHONE: 041-8734910 -12 FAX: 041-8731180

MILLS : 32-K.M., SHEIKHUPURA ROAD, FAISALABAD.




MASOOD TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED m m

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 29™ Annual General Meeting of the members, holding Ordinary
Shares of Masood Textile Mills Limited, will be held at its Registered Office, Universal House, West
Canal Road, Faroogabad, Faisalabad on Thursday, 31* October, 2013 at 11:00 A.M. to transact the
following business:

1. To confirm the minutes of the last Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 31*' March, 2013.

2. To receive and adopt the Audited Accounts of the Company for the financial year ended
30™ June, 2013, '

3. To approve the payment of cash dividend @ 17% % (Rs. 1.75 per ordinary share), as
recommended by the Board of Directors.

4, To appoint Auditors and to fix their remuneration for the financial year ending 30™ June, 2014.
M/s Riaz Ahmad & Company, Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible offer themselves
for their re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

5. To consider and if deemed fit to pass the following resolutions with or without modification as
Special Resolution to authorize the Company for increasing the authorized capital and
accordingly to approve alterations in clause-V of Memorandum of Association of the Company:

“Resolved that the current authorized share capital of the Company of Rupees 1,250,000,000
{Rupees One Thousand Two Hundred Fifty Million only) divided into 65 000 000 (Sixty Five
Million) Ordinary Shares of Rupees 10 each and 60 000 000 (Sixty Million) Preference Shares of
Rs. 10 each, be and is hereby increased and changed to authorized share capital of Rupees
1,850,000,000 (Rupees One Thousand Eight Hundred Fifty Million Only), comprising of
125 000 000 {One Hundred Twenty Five Million} Ordinary Shares and 60 000 000 (Sixty Million)
Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each.”

“Resolved further that the Memorandum of Association of the Company be and is hereby
amended to reflect the increase & the changes in the authorized share capital of the Company by
substituting the existing object clause V of the Memorandum of Association with the following
clause V"

“Y. The autheorized share capital of the Company is Rupees 1,850,000,000 {Rupees One
Thousand Eight Hundred Fifty Milfion Only) divided into 125 000 000 (One Hundred Twenty Five
Million ) Ordinary Shares of Rupees 10 each (Ten Only} and 60000000 (Sixty Milion)
Preference Shares of Rupees 10 gach (Ten Only) with the power to increase or reduce the
capital and to divide the shares in the capital for the time being into several classes in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and any rules made
thereunder, and to attach thereto respectively such preferential, deferred, qualified or special
rights, privileges or conditions as may be determined by or in accordance with the Articles of
Association for the time being, and to vary, modify or abrogate any such rights, privileges or
conditions in such manner as may for the time being be provided by the Articles of Association of

the Company.”
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STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 160(1)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE, 1984.

At present the Company has an authorized capital of Rupees 1,250,000,000. In future, the
Company intends to issue further shares which will cross the limit of present authorized capital.
Accordingly, the Board of Directors have recommended to raise authorized capital with an
additional amount of Rupees 600,000,000. This increase in authorized capital will necessitate
amendments in ¢lause V of the Memorandum of. Association of the Company. For this purpose it
is proposed that the resolutions set out in the Notice of Annual General Meeting of the Company
for increase in authorized capital be passed as Speciai Resolutions, Moreover, the Directors
have no special interest in the proposed increase of authorized share capital, except to the
extent of their shareholding. ‘

6.  To consider any other business that may be placed before the meeting with the permission of the
chair.
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Faisalabad: 05 Octoher, 2013. _ {(COMPANY SECRETARY)
NOTES:

1,

Share Transfer Books for Ordinary Shares of the Company will remain closed from 28" October to
5" November 2013 {both days inclusive) for the determination of entitlement of cash dividend on Ordinary
Shares. Physical transfers / CDS Transactions 1Ds, recelved in order at Registered Office of the Company
or our Share Heglstrar by the close of business on 27" October, 2013 will be treated in time.

Share Transfer Books for Preference Shares of the Company will remain closed from 28™ October to
5™ November 2013 (both days inclusive) for determining the entitlement of Preferred Dividend calculated at
average six months KIBOR+200 bps p.a. (Rs.1.27 per share). Physical transfers / CDS Transactions 1Ds,
received in order at Registered Office of the Company or our Share Registrar, by the close of business on
27" October, 2013 will be treated in time.

A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another shareholder as his/her proxy
to attend and vote on his/her behalf. The instrument appointing a Proxy and Power of Attorney or other
authority under which it is signed or notarially cerlified copy of the Power of Attomey must be received at
the Registered Office of the Company, duly stamped, signed and witnessed not later than 48 hours hefore
the meeting. An instrument of Proxy applicable for meeting is attached herewith. However, Preference
Shareholders are not entitled to attend the meeting, since Preference Shares carry no voting rights.

Share holders whose shares are deposited with Central Depository System (CDS) are requested to bring
their Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) along with their Account Number in CDS for verification.
In case of corporate-entity, the Board of Directors’ Resolution/Power of Attorney with specimen signatures
of the nominee shall be produced (unless provided earlier) at the time of the meeting.

Share holders are requested to notify any' change in their addresses immediately. The share holders
claiming exemption from Zakat are required to file their Declaration with our Share Registrar. Moreover, the
share holders who have not yet submitted their Computerized National Identity Cards to the Company are

-requested once again to send them at their earliest, in compliance to the instructions of Securities &

Exchange Commission of Pakistan for printing CNIC # on Dividend Warrants,
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their 29th Annual Report, comprising of Annual Accounts of the
Company for the financial year ended 30th June, 2013 along with Auditors’ Report thereon and other required
information prescribed under the Code of Corporate Governance. The financial results of the Company. for the year
under discussion reflect a healthy increase of 18% in sales which were increased from Rupees 19.275 Billion to
Rupees 22.745 Biilion during the year under review, mainly on account of increase in exports. Gross Profit margin was
improved from Rupees 3,222 Billion to Rupees 3.906 Billion as compared with the corresponding previous year. The
profit for the year before taxation was considerably enhanced from Rupees 999.230 Million to Rupees 1,129.196
Million, thus reflecting net increase of 13% over previous year. Thus, earning per share-basic was improved from
Rupees 13.92 to Rupees 15.11 during the year under review, The declared financial results express encouraging state
of affairs inspite of prevailing shortage of energy, coupled with general inflationary trend of cost components etc. .
Despite all above, the management continued its aggressive marketing strategies to boost exports in most competitive
international Markets. Moreover, the management also made aggressive efforts to enhance efficiency and reduction in
cost by better utilization of available resources at all stages of production. The comparative financial results of the
Company are reproduced, hereunder:

2013 2012
{RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

SALES ' 22,744,589 19,274,793
COST OF SALES ' (18,838,816) (16,052,482)
GROSS PROFIT : , 3,905,773 3,222,311
DISTRIBUTION COST _ | (1,270,852) (910,442)
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 7 : (385,512) (310,523)
OTHER EXPENSES 7 (59,613) (65,641)
(1,715,977 {1,286,606)
2,189,796 1,935,705
OTHER INCOME 45,486 62,863
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS 2,235,282 . 1,998,568
FINANCE COST ' (1,105,926) (999,338)
SHARE OF LOSS FROM ASSOCIATE (160) -
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 1,129,196 999,230
TAXATION (222,838) (163,864)
PROFIT AFTER TAXATION 906,358 835,366
EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC  (RUPEES) 15.11 13.92
- DILUTED (RUPEES) 11.62 9.83
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Our expansion/BMR programme is a continuing process. Accordingly, required expansion/BMR was also made during
the year under reference for enhancing production facilities to meet the requirements of our customers. It was carried
out to attract more markets in Europe and Asia. for further business opportunities to produce better financial results.
Likewise, to achieve cost effective production, we have been operating our steam/thermo oil boilers on bio-mass to
meet the steam and heating requirements during gas load shedding period.

Inspite of above challenges, the management is committed to mitigate the adverse affects of above factors by
implementing improved efficiencies and productivity and effective cost control measures. The management of
Company is expecting better financial results in the subsequent period based on its management strategy and cost
control measures. ‘

Energy shortage is a challenge in the country. In order to address this issue, the Company under the authority of a
special resolution passed on 28th Novembar,. 2012 will make an equity investment of Rupees 200.000 million in its
associate company namely “Biomass Power Generation Limited” for setting up 12 Mega-Watt Biomass Based Power
Generation Piant. The Company has invested Rupees 0.160 million in the equity of its associated company so far. The
Company intends to make further investment in the project in future as and when required upto the extent of Rupees
200.000 million.

Keeping in view the profitability and in line with continuous payout history of the Company, your Directors have
recommended 1712 % cash dividend (Rs. 1.75 per ordinary share) for holders of Ordinary Shares for the financial year,
under review.

>

In addition to Ordinary Shares, the Company had originally issued 60.000 million Preference Shares of the value of
Rupees 600.000 million to the financial institutions ta meet its funds requirements. After expiry of their maturity, the
process of their redemption continued at the option of the Company. During the financial year under review, fourth
redemption of 1333 334 Preference Shares was affected, as per our obligation. Under the agreed terms and
conditions, Preferred Dividend of Rupees 1.27 per share has been computed against balance 39 500 000 Preference
Shares on the basis of average six months KIBOR+200 bps p.a.

During the financial year under review, fresh Election of Directors was held to elect Seven Directors of the Company for
the next term of three years. The Board has conveyed its gratitude over the good gesture of the Shareholders who
expressed their confidence in the existing team by re-electing the same Directors for the next term. However, the Board
is pleased to entertain the substitution of NIT-Nominee Director, by appointing Mr. Shoaib Ahmad Khan, for the
remainder period, in place of Mr. Muhammad Yousuf Memon, the outgoing Director. The new appointment is most
welcome by the Board. It is hoped that the Company would avail the benefits of valuable advice and corporate
experience of NIT, '

The Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan has already introduced the "Code of Corporate Govemance™2012
in order to enhance the investors’ confidence. It was subsequently made part of the Listing Regulations of all the Stock
Exchanges of Pakistan and became applicable to all public listed companies. By raising certain new requirements, the
objective was to further improve and raise the standards of corporate governance in the country while at the same time
taking into consideration the global developmenis in corporate governance. The Directors are, therefore, desirous of
making compliance of different provisions of -the Code by employing their efforts. It was mandatory for the listed
companies to make appropriate arrangements to carry out orientation courses for their Directors to acquaint them with
the Code, applicable laws, their duties and responsibitities to enable them to effectively manage the affairs of their
companies for and on behalf of shareholders. It shall be rmandatory for all the directors of the listed companies to have
certification under any directors’ training program offered by institutions that meet the criteria specified by SECP. It was
also provided that from June 30, 2012 to June 30, 2016 every year, a minimum of one director on the Board shall
acquire the said certification under this program each year and thereafter all directors shall obtain it. It is a matter -of
satisfaction to report that incompliance to these instructions, Mr. Naseer Ahmad Shah, Chairman of the Company,
obtained the required certification under the Director's Training Programme from the U'niversity of Lahore. It is hoped
that such training would be continued in future.
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Keeping in view the relevant provisions of Gorporate Governance-2012, the Directors are pleased to state that financial
statements, prepared by the management ol the Company, present its state of affairs fairly, the result of its operations,
cash flows and changes in equity. Proper books of account have been maintained. Appropriate accounting policies
have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and accounting estimates are based on
reasonable and prudent judgment. International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been
followed in preparation of financial statements and any departures there from has been adequately disclosed and
explained. The Directors further state that the system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively
implemented and monitored. There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. .

Five meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the financia! year, with the following attendance:

S.No Name of Directors No. of Meetings
: Attended
1. Mr. Naseer Ahmad Shah 5
2, Mr. Shahid Nazir Ahmad 4
3. Mr. Muhammad Arshad 5
4. Mr. Matloob Hussain 5
5. Mr. Shahid igbal 5
6. Mr. Fazal Ahmad 5
7. Mr. Muhammad Yousaf Memon 3

(NIT-Nomines)

Likewise, five meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the financial year, with the following attendance:

S.No Name of Directors No. of Meetings
Attended
1. Mr. Fazal Ahmad 5
2, Mr. Matloob Hussain 5
3 Mr. Shahid Igbal 5

M/s Riaz Ahmed & Company, Chantered Accountants, retire and being eligible, offer themselves for their re-
appointment. As advised by the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors has recommended their re-appointment as
auditors of the Company for the next financial year ending 30th June, 2014,

The Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance is enclosed. Annexed to the Directors’ Report,
we are encfosing our comparative financial data for the last six years. We are also enclosing Form-34 containing the
pattern of share holding along with additicnal information, as on 30th June, 2013.

We remain very optimistic about the future growth prospects of the Company, keeping in view the hard working and
devoted efforts of the workers and officers of the Company. Accordingly, the Board expresses its gratitude for
maintaining healthy atmosphere and good relations amongst the [abour community and achieving the high targets of
the Company successfully. We also convey our appraciation for the patronage and support of our customers, suppliers,
bankers, advisers and shareholders for expressing their confidence in the Company.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Faisalabad: 05 October, 2013 {SHAHID NAZIR AHMAD)
Chief Executive Officer
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SIX YEARS FINANCIAL RESULTS

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

SALES ' 22744569 19274793 18504930 14720830 10,046,180 7,884,785
COST OF SALES (18838816)  (16,052482) (15552,188) (12085511)  (8851,416) (6,428,798)
GROSSPROFIT 3905773 322411 297272 2635319 2004764 1455987
DISTRIBUTION COST _ (1270852 | (910442 |  (828,79%) (336.458) (605.061)( | (348.281)
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (85512)| | (310823 | (283558)( |  (219,00) | (160.057)| | (139577)
OTHER EXPENSES . (59.613) (65,641) (53,016) (94381)| | (71,077 | (29.855)

(1,715,877)  (1,286,606)  (1,165370)  (1,149,859) {836,195)  (517,713)

2,189,796 1,935,705 1,807,372 1,485,460 1,258,569 . 938274

OTHER INCOME 45,486 62,863 60;649 14,242 11,397 8,700
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS 2,235,282 1,998,568 1,868,021 1,499,702 — 1,269,966 946,974
FINANCE COST (1,105,926) (999,338) (923,074} {595,274) (719,855) (538,964)
SHARE OF LOSS FROM ASSOCIATE {160) - ) '

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 1,129,196 999,230 944,947 904,428 550,111 408,010
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VISION STATEMENT

»  Aleading producer of textile products by providing the highest quality of products and services
to its customers.

. To strive excellence through commitment, integrity, honesty and team work.

. Highly ethical company and be respected corporate citizen to continue playing due role in
the social and environmental sectors of the company. :

. To develop and extremely motivated and professional trained work force, which would drive
growth through innovation and renovation.

. Sustained growth in earning in real terms.

MISSION STATEMENT

Our mission is to be a dynamic, profitable and growth oriented company by providing good
return on investment 1o its shareholders and investors, quality products to its customers,
a secured and friendly environment place of work to its employees and to project Pakistan's

image in the international market.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

This statement is being prescribed to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance contained in Listing Regulations of
Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad Stock Exchanges, for the purpose of establishing a framework of good governance,
whereby a listed company is managed in compliance with the best practices of corporate governance.

The Company has applied the principles contained in the code in the following manner:

1. The Company encourages representation of independent non-executive directors representing minority interests on
its Board of Directors, At present the Board includes.

Category Names

Independent Director : Mr, Muhammad Yousuf Memon

Executive Director : Mr, Shahid Nazir Ahmad

Non-Executive Directors : Mr. Naseer Ahmad Shah, Mr. Muhammad Arshad

Mr. Shahid Igbal, Mr. Fazal Ahmad and Mr. Matloob Hussain

2. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director in more than seven listed companies,
including this Company. s

3. All the resident directors of the Company are registered as tax payers and none‘ of them has defaulied in payrﬁent
of any loan to a banking company, a DFI or an NBF! or, being a member of a stock exchange, has been declared
as a defaulter by that stock exchange.

4. No casual vacancy was occurred on the Board during the financial year under review, However, new election of
Directors was held during the year to appoint seven Directors for the next term of three years.

5. The Company will prepare a ‘Code of Conduct’ and will ensure that appropriate steps have been taken to
disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

6. The Board has developed a Vision/Mission Statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the
Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dales on which they were approved
or amended has been maintained. '

7. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions, including
appointment and determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of the CEO and other
executive and non-executive directors, were taken by the Board.

8. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and in his absence by a director elected by the
Board and the Board met at least once in every quarter. Written Notices of the Board Meetings, along with agenda
and working papers, were circulated at least seven days before the meetings. The minutes of the meetings were
appropriately recorded and circulated.

9.  The Board arranged the prescribed training programme for its Chairman / Director from the University of Lahore to
carry out Orientation Course, to acquaint him with the code, applicable laws, his duties and responsibilities to
enable him to effectively manage the affairs of the Company.

10. The Board have approved appointments of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit,
’ including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employmenit.

11. The Directors’ Report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the CCG and fully
describes the salient matters required to be disclosed.

©
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12.  The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by CEO and CFO before approval of the Board.

13. The Directors, CEO and Executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the Company other than that disclosed
in the pattern of shareholding. :

14. The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial repotting requirements of the CCG.

15. The Board has formed an Audit Committee. It comprises of three non-executive directors including the Chairman of
the Committee.

16. The meetings of the Audit Committee were held at least once every quarter prior to approval of interfim and final
results of the Company, as required by the CCG. The terms of reference of the commitiee have been formed and
advised to the committee for compliance.

17. The Board has formed an HR and Remuneration Committee. It comprises of three non- executive directors
including the Chairman of the Commitiee. )

18. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function.

19. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the
quality control review programme of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, that they or any of the
partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and all
its partners are in compliance with Intefnational Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as
adopted by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

20. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services
except in accordance with the listing regulations and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC
guidelines in this regard.

21.  The ‘closed period’, prior to the announcement of intefim/final results, and business decisions, which may materially
affect the market price of company’ securities, was determined and intimated to the directors, employees and stock
exchanges.

22. Material/price sensitive information has been disseminated among all market participants at once through stock
exchanges.

23. We confirm that all other material principles enshrined in the CCG have been complied with, except those towards
which reasonable progress is being made by the company to seek compliance by the end of next accounting year.

For Masood Textile Milis Limited

Faisalabad: (SHAHID NAZIR AHMAD)

05 October, 2013 Chief Executive Officer
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REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ON STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH
BEST PRACTICES OF CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We have reviewed the Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the Code of Corporate
Governance prepared by the Board of Directors of MASOOD TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED (“the Company”} for
the year ended 30 June 2013, to comply with the Listing Regulations of the respective Stock Exchanges,
where the Company is listed.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance is that of the Board of Directors of
the Company. Our responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified,
whether the statement of compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of
the Code of Gorporate Governance and report if it does not. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the
Company personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Cede.

As part of our audit of financial statements, we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and
internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not
required to consider whether the Board's statement on internal control covers all risks and controls, or to form
an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures
and risks.

Further, Listing Regulations of the Karachi, Lahore and Isfamabad Stock Exchanges require the Company to
place before the Board of Directors for their consideration and approval related party transactions
distinguishing between transactions carried out on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length
transactions and transactions which are not executed at arm's length price recording proper justification for
using such alternate pricing mechanism. Further, all such transactions are also required to be sepérately
placed before the audit committee. We are only required and have ensured compliance of requirement to the
extent of approval of related party transactions by the Board of Directors and placement of such transactions
before the audit committee. We have not carried out any procedures to determine whsther the related party
transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the best
practices contained in the Code of Corporate Governance as applicable to the Company for the
year ended 30 June 2013.

RIAZ AHMAD & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

Name of Engagement Partner
Mubashar Mahmood

Date: 05 October 2013
FAISALABAD
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AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

We have audited the annexed balance sheet of MASOOD TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED as at 30 June 2013 and the related
profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash flow stalement and statement of changes in equity
together with the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended and we state that we have obtained all the information
and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

It is the responsibility of the company's management to establish and maintain a system ‘of internal control, and prepare and
present the above said stalements in oonformity with the approved accounting standards and the requirements of the
Companies Ordinance, 1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these stalements based on our audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabie assurance about whether the above said statements are free of any
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the above said statements. An audit also includes assessing thé accounting policies and significant estimates made by
management, as well as, evalualing the overall presentation of the above said statements We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and, after due verification, we report that: :

a.) in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the company as required by the Companies Crdinance,
1984,

b.)  in our opinion:
i) the batance sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity
with the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement with the books of account and are further in
accordance with accounting policies consistently applied;

iy the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the company's business; and

i)  the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incumred during the year were in accordance
with the objects of the company;

¢.) in our opinion and to the best of our information and according 10 the explanations given to us, the balance sheet,
profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity
together with the notes forming part thereof conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan,
and, give the information required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so required and respectively
give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 30 June 2013 and of the profit, its comprehensive
income, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended; and

d.) in our opinion, Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XV!I of 1980), was deducted
by the company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under Section 7 of that Ordinance.

RIAZ AHMAD & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

Name of Engagement Partner
Mubashar Mahmood

Date: 05 October 2013
FAISALABAD
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BALANCE SHEET AS

NOTE 2013 2012
{RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorized share capital
65-000 000 (2012 : 65000 000 ) ordinary shares

of Rupees 10 each 650,000 650,000
60 000 000 {2012 : 60 000 000 ) preference shares
of Rupees 10 each 600,000 600,000
' 1,250,000 1,250,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital 3 - 995,000 1,008,333
Reserves 4 4,111,967 3,372,221
Total equity 5,106,967 4,380,554
Surplus on revaluation of freehold land ' 5 606,262 379,332

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term financing 6 2,182,436 2,487,997
Liabilities against assets subject 1o finance lease 7 115,227 108,710
Deferred liability for gratuity ' 8 314,360 257,072

2,612,023 2,853,779

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 9 2,278,636 2,111,193
Accrued mark-up 10 184,305 173,918
Short term borrowings : 11 7,590,117 5,088,907
Current portion of non-current liabilities 12 729,873 748,767
Provision for taxation 222,712 181,762
11,005,643 8,304,547
TOTAL LIABILITIES 13,617,666 11,158,326
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 13
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES - _ 19,330,895 _ 15,918,212

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements,

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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AT 30 JUNE 2013

NOTE 2013 - 2012
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment ‘ 14 5,522,095 4,749,775

Investment in an associate 15 - -
Long term advances 16 6,054 5,008
iL.ong term security deposits : - 35,104 26,258
5,563,253 4,781,042
CURRENT ASSETS
Stores, spare parts and loose tools 17 906,634 853,101
Stock in trade 18 6,501,520 4,646,583
Trade debts ) 19 3,832,218 3,550,116
Loans and advances 20 : W 719,235 284,891
Short term deposits and prepayments 21 _ 410,969 335,800
Other receivables 22 ‘871,434 541,205
Cash and bank balances 23 525,632 925,384
13,767,642 11,137,170
TOTAL ASSETS . 19,330,895 15,918,212
'DIRECTOR _
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

SALES

COST OF SALES
GROSS PROFIT

DISTRIBUTION COST
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
OTHER EXPENSES

OTHER INCOME
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

FINANCE COST
SHARE OF LOSS FROM ASSOCIATE
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

TAXATION

PROFIT AFTER TAXATION

EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC (RUPEES)

-DILUTED (RUPEES})

NOTE

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

32

2013

2012

. (RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

22,744,589

(18,838,816)
3,005,773

119,274,793

(16,052,482)

3,222,311

(1,270,852)
(385,512)
(59,613)

| (910,442)
(310,523)
(65,641)

(1,715,977

2,189,796
45,486
2,235,282
(1,105,926)
(160)
1,129,196

(222,838) .

906,358

15.11

11.62

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

(1,286,606)

1,835,705
62,863

(999,338)

999,230

.- (163,864)

835,366

13.92

9.83

DIRECTOR
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

2013 2012
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

PROFIT AFTER TAXATION 906,358 835,366

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Items that will not be reclassified subsegquently to profit or loss I - -

ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss } - _ -

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 906,358 835,366
The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR




MASOOD TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations

Finance cost paid

Income tax paid

Dividend paid to ordinary shareholders
Dividend paid to preference shareholders
Gratuity paid

Net increase in long term advances
Net increase in long term security deposits

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment
Investment made in associate

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from long term financing

Repayment of long term financing

Repayment of preference shares

Repayment of liabilities against assets subject to finance lease

Short term borrowings - net
Net cash {used Iin} / from financing activities
NET (DECREASE)INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
END OF THE YEAR (NOTE 23)

NOTE

33

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

20

2013 2012
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
11,654 1,962,412
(1,095,539) {1,009,262)
(277,418) (212,423)
" (104,763) (104,669)
(61,612) " (71,523)
(58,470) (63,592)
{1,046) {1,270)
(8,845) (8,778)
(1,596,039) 490,895
14,801 54,636
(918,283) {483,060)
(160} -
(904,642) (428,424)
367,924 1,943,653
(707,417) (660,980)
(13,333) {66,667)
(47,455) (47,208)
2,501,210 (1,007,301
2,100,929 161,497
(399,752) 223,968
925,384 701,416
525632 925,384
DIRECTOR
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
~ FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

RESERVES
SHARE CAPITAL URNTPE:HUOE. . TOTAL
CAPITAL SHARE | REDEMPTION sSuB GENERAL| PRIATED sUB TOTAL EQUITY
PREMIUM | °~ FUND TOTAL TOTAL .
PROFIT
RUPEES IN THOUSAND "
Balance as at 30 June 2011 1,075,000 400,000 200,000 600,000 214,500 1,898,878 2,113,378 2713378 3,788,378
. /

Preference shares repaid (66,667) - - - - - - - (66,667)
Transfered from capital redemption
reserve fund - . (66,667) (66,667) - 66,667 66,667 -
Transfered to capital redemption
reserve fund . - 8333 8333 . (8,333) (8,339) -
Dividend at the rate of Rupees1.75
per share {Ordinary shares) - - - - - (105,000) {105,000) (105,000) (105,000
Dividend at the rate of Rﬁpees1.50
per share (Preference shares) - - . . - (71,523, (71,523} (71,523) (71,523)
Profit for the year - - - -, - 335,366 835,366 835,366 835,366
Other comprehensive income
Tor the year - - - - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income for _
the year - . . - - 835,366 835,366 835,366 835,366
Balance as at 30 June 2012 1,008,333 400,000 141,666 541,666 214,500 2,616,056 2,830,555 3372221 4,380,554
Preference shares repaid {13,333 - - - - - . - (13,339)
Transferred from capilal redemption ‘
reserve fund - - {(13,333) (13,333) - 13,333 13,333 - -
Transferred to capital redemption )
reserve fund - - 5,000 5,000 - (5,000% {5,000) . -
Transferred to general reserve - - - - 500,000 (500,000 o - -
Dividend al lhe rate of Rupees1.75
per share (Ordinary shares) - - - - - (105,000) (105,000)  (105,000)  {105,000)
Dividend at the rate of Rupees 1.49 . .
per share (Preigrence shares) - - - - - (61612) (61612) (61,612} (61,612)
Profit for the year - - - - - 905,358 | 906,358 906,358 906,358
Other comprehensive income )
tor the year - - . - - - - - -
Tolal comprehensive income for ) :
the year ) - - . - - 906,358 906,358 906,358 906,358
Balance as at 30 June 2013 995,000 400,000 133,333 533,333 714500 2,864,134 3,578,634 4111967 5,106,967
The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER ' ' DIRECTOR
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MASOOD TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

1.

2.1

b)

c)

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Masood Textile Mills Limited is a public limited company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1913 (Now
Companies Ordinance, 1984} and listed on the stock exchanges in Pakistan. Its registered office is situated
at Universal House, West Canal Road, Faisalabad. The main objects of the Company are manufacturing
and sale of cotton / synthetic fiber yam, knitted / dyed fabrics and garments.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the préparation of these financial statements are set out
helow. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated:

Basis of Preparation

Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporiing
Standards (IFRS} issued by the International Accounting Standards Board as are notified under the
Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. In
case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 shall prevail.

Accounting Conventlon

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the
following: ’

< Deferred liability for the staff retirement benefits which is recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation
{Note 8).

» Land grouped in operating fixed assets which is carried at revalued amount (Note 14.1).

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its judgment in the
process of applying the Company's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectation of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The areas where various assumptions and estimates
are significant to the Company's financial statements or where judgments were exercised in application of
accounting policies are as follows:

Deferred liability for staff retirement benefits

The cost of the defined benefit plan is determined using actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation involves
making assumptions about discount rates, expected rates of return on assets, future salary increases and
monthly rates. Changes in these assumptions in future years. may affect the liability / asset under these
plans in those years.

Taxation

In making the estimates for income tax currently payable by the Company, the management takes into
account the current income tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.
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d)

f

Useful lives, patterns of economic benefits and impairments

Estimates with respect to residual values and useful lives and pattem of flow of economic benefits are
hased on the analysis of the management of the Company. Further, the Company reviews the value of
assets for possible impairment on annual basis. Any change in the estimates in the future might affect the
carrying amount of respective item of property, plant and equipment, with a corresponding effect on the
depreciation charge and impairment.

Inventories

Net realizable value of inventories is determined with reference to currently prevailing selling prices less
estimated expenditure to make sales.

Provision for doubtful debts / receivables

The Company reviews its receivable balances against any provision required for any doubtful balances on
an ongoing basis. The provision is made while taking into consideration expected recoveries, if any.
Amendments to published approved standards that are effective in current year and are relevant to
the Company -

Following amendments to published approved standards are.mandatory for the Company's accounting
periods beginning on or after 01 July 2012;

IAS 1 (Amendment, 'Presentation of Financia! Statements' (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 01 July 2012). The main change resulting from these amendments is a requirement for entities to
group items presented in Other ComprehensiVe Income (OCI) on the basis of whether they are potentially
reclassifiable to profit or loss subsequently (reclassification adjustments). The amendments do not address
which items are presented in OCl. The amendments have been applied retrospectively, and hence the
presentation of items of other comprehensive income has been modified to reflect the changes. Other than
the above menticned presentation changes, the application of the amendments to |AS 1 does not result in
any impact on profit or loss, other comprehensive income and total comprehensive income.

Amendments to published approved standards that are effective in current year but not relevant to
the Company

There are other amendments to the published approved standards that are mandatory for accounting
periods beginning on or after 01 July 2012 but are considered not to be refevant or do not have any
significant impact on the Company's financial statements and are therefore not detailed in these financial
statements.

Standards and amendments to published approved standards that are not yet effective but relevant
to the Company

Following standards and amendments to existing standards have been published and are mandatory for the
Company's accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2013 or later pericds:

IFRS 7 (Amendment), ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures' (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 01 January 2013). The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) has amended the accounting
requirements and disclosures related to off setting of financial assets and financial liabilities by issuing
amendments to 1AS 32 ‘Financial Instruments: Presentation’ and IFRS 7. These amendments are the result
of IASB and US Financial Accounting Board undertaking a joint project to address the differences in their
respective accounting standards regarding offsetting of financial instruments. The clarifying amendments to
IAS 32 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2014. However, these
amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

@
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IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2015). |
addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities. This is
the first part of a new standard on classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
that shall replace IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 has two
measurement categories: amortized ¢ost and fair value. All equity instruments are measured at fair value. A
debt instrument is measured at amortized cost only if the entity is holding it to collect contractual cash flows
and the cash flows represent principal and interest. For liabilities, the standard retains most of the 1AS 39
requirements. These include amortized-cost accounting for most financial liabilities, with bifurcation of
embedded derivatives. The main change is that, in cases where the fair value option is taken for financial
liabilities, the part of a fair value change due to an entity’s own credit risk is recorded in other
comprehensive income rather than the income statement, unless this creates an accounting mismatch. This
change shall mainly affect financial institutions. There shall be no impact on the Company’s accounting for
financial liabilities, as the new requirements only affect the accounting for financial liabilities that are
designated at fair value through profit or loss, and the Company does not have any such liabilities. ‘

IFRS 12 *Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01
January 2013). This standard includes the disclosure requirements for all forms of interests n other entities,
including joint arrangements, associates, special purpose vehicles and other off-balance sheet vehicles.
This standard is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 12 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2013} provide
additional transition relief in by limiting the requirement to provide adjusted comparative information to only
the preceding comparative period. Also, amendments to IFRS 12 eliminate the requurement to provide
comparative information for periods prior to the immediately preceding period.

IFRS 13 ‘Fair value Measurement’ {effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2013).
This standard aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a precise definition of fair
value and a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across IFRSs.
The requirements, which are largely aligned between IFRSs and US GAAP, do not extend the use of fair
value accounting but provide guidance on how it should be applied where its use is already required or
permitted by other standards within IFRSs or US GAAP. This standard is not expected to have a material
impact on the Company’s financial statements.- ’

International Accounting Standard (IAS) -19 ‘Employee Benefits’ (amended 2011) - effectivé for annual
period beginning on or after 01 January 2013. The amendments have eliminated the corridor approach
which permitted to recognize actuarial gains / losses in profit and loss account using the corridor method,
whereby actuarial gains / losses are recognized when the cumulative unrecognized amount thereof at the
beginning of the year exceed the corridor limit, where corridor limit has been prescribed as 10% of the
greater of the present value of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan assets. Pursuant
to this change, effective from the next accounting year, the Company will be required to recognize
immediately all actuarial gains or losses in other comprehensive income and past service cost in profit and

loss account.

The adoption of the aforesaid amendment in "IAS-19 'Employee Benefits' will result in change in the
Company‘s accounting policy related to recognition of actuarial gains and losses and past service cost
pertaining to employees retirement gratuity. As at 30 June 2013, the unrecognized actuarial loss is Rupees

29.714 million.

IAS 36 (Amendments) ‘Impairment of Assets’ {effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January
2014), Amendments have been made in IAS 36 to reduce the circumstances in which the recoverabie
amount of assets or cash-generating units is required to be disclosed, clarify the disclosures required and to
introduce an explicit requirement to disclose the discount rate used in determining impairment (or reversals)

@.
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a)

2.2

23

2.4

where recoverable amount (based on fair value less costs of disposal) is determined using a present value
technique. However, the amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company's
financial statements. -

On 17 May 2012, JASB issued Annual Improvements to IFRSs: 2009 — 2011 Cycle, incorporating
amendments to five IFRSs more specifically in IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' and IAS 32
‘Financial instruments: Presentation’, that are considered relevant to the Company's financial statements.
These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2013. These
amendments are unlikely to have a S|gn|f|cant impact on the Company's financial statements and have
therefore not been analyzed in detail. ‘

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved standards that are not yet

_effective and not considered refevant to the Company

There are other standards, amendme_nts to published approved standards and new interpretations that are
mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2013 but are considered not to be relevant
or do not have any significant impact on the Company's financial statements and are therefore not detailed
in these financial statements.

Staff retirement benefits

The Company operates unfunded gratuity scheme for its employees. Provision is. made in the books of
account on the basis of actuarial computation subject to a maximum of 8.33 percent of salary of the
employees. Latest actuarial valuation has been made as at 30 June 2013 by the consuiting actuaries using
Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method.

The Company's policy with regard to actuarial gains / (losses) 'Is to follow the minimum recommended
approach under |AS-13 "Employee Benefits”,

Foreign currency

These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company's functional currency. All
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the
rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date or at the contracted rates, while the transactions in
foreign currency during the year are initially recorded in functional currency at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the transaction date. All non monetary items are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates
prevailing on the date of transaction or on the date when fair values are determined. The Company charges
all the exchange differences to profit and loss account. ‘

Taxation

Current

The Company falls in the ambit of presumptive tax regime under section 169 of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001. Provision for income tax is made in the financial statements accordingly. However, provision for tax
on other income is based on taxable income at the current rates after considering the rebates and tax
credits available, if any.

Deferred .
Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary differences
arising from difference between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets 1o the extent that it is
probabie that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused
tax losses and tax credits can be utilized,

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse
based on tax rates that have been enacted or subsiantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred
tax is- charged or credited in the profit and loss account, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognlsed in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
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Property, plant, equipment and depreciation

Owned .

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified
impairment loss except freshold land which is stated at cost / appreciated value less any identified
impairment loss. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss. Cost of
property, plant and equipment signifies historical cost, applicable exchange differences (upto 30 September
2004), appreciated value, borrowing cost pertaining to erection / construction period as referred in Note 2.8
and directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to working condition.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Maintenance and normal repairs are charged
to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Major renewals and improvements are capitalized.

Leased - Finance Lease

Leases where the Company has substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
lease. Assets subject to finance lease are capitalized at the commencernent of the lease term at the lower
of present value of minimum lease payments under the lease agreements and the fair value of the leased
assets, each determined at the inception of the lease. ;

The related rental obligation net of finance cost, is included in liabilities against assets subjec! to finance
lease. The liabilities are classified as current and long term depending upon the timing of payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost so as to achieve a constant rate on
the balance outstanding. The finance cost is charged to profit and loss account over the lease term.

Gain on sale and lease back of operating fixed assets is deferred and amortized over the lease term and
loss on sale and lease back of operating fixed assets is recognized in profit and loss account. Assets so
acquired are depreciated over their expected useful life.

Leased — Operating lease

Leases, where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to profit and loss
account on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is charged to income on reducing balance method at the
rates given in Note 14.1 to write off the cost over their expected useful life. The Company charges
depreciation on additions from the date when the asset is available for use and on deletions up to the date
when asset is derecognized. The residual values and useful lives are reviewed by the management, at each
financial year end and adjusted if impact on depreciation is significant.

Derecognition

An item of propettly, plant and equipment is derecogmzed upen disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is
included in the profit and loss account in the year the asset is derecognized.

Investment in an associate
The Company's investment in its associate is accounted for under the equity method of accounting. An -

associate is an entity in which the Company has significant influence and which is neither a subsidiary nor a
joint venture. Under the equity method, the investment in the associate is carried in the balance sheet at
cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Company’s share of net assets of the associate. The profit and
loss account reflects the share of the results of operations of the assoclate. Where there has been a
change recognized directly in the equity of the associate, the Company recognizes its share of any changes
and discloses this, when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity.

The reporting dates of the associate and the Company are identical and the associate's accounting policies
conform to these used by the Company for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
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2.7

2.8

28
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2.1

"Inventories

Inventories, except for stock in transit and waste stock / rags are stated at lower of coét and net realizable
value. Cost is determined as follows:

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Useable stores and spare parts are valued principally at moving average cost, while items considered
obsolete are carried at nil value. ltems in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other
charges paid thereon.

Stock in trade 7
Cost of raw material, work-in-process and finished goods is deterrnined as follows:

i} Forraw materials ' - Annua! average basis.
i) For work-in-process - Average manufacturing ¢ost including a porticn
and finished goods ' of production over heads.

Materials in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon, waste stock/
rags are valued at net realizable value.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs
necessarily to be incurred in order to make a sale.

Borrowing cost

Interest, mark-up and other charges on long term liabilities are capitalized upto the date of commissioning
of respective fixed assets acquired out of the proceeds of such long term liabilities. All other interest, mark-
up and other charges are charged to profit and loss account.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
seftle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. However, provisions are
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate.

Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Company's assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount of such
asset is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit and loss account except for the property,
plant and equipment stated under revaluation model in which case it is adjusted against the revaluation
surplus. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized.
If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased
amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no
impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in profit and loss
account except for the property, plant and equipment stated under revaluation model in which case it is
adjusted against the revaluation surplus.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from different sources is recognized as under;
- Revenue from sales is recognized on delivery of géods to customers.

- Profit on deposits with banks is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the
amounts outstanding and rates applicable thereon.
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2.13

2.14

215

2.16

Share capital’

Ordinary and preference shares are classified as equity.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments carried on the balance sheel include Iong-térm and short-term deposits, trade debts,
loans and advances, other receivables, cash and bank balances, long-term financing, liabilities against

- assets subject to finance lease, shor-term borrowings, accrued mark-up and trade and other payakles etc.

Financial assets and liabilities are recognhized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of instrument. Initial recognition is made at fair value plus transaction costs directly attributable to
acquisition, except for “financial instrument at fair value through profit or loss” which is measured initially at
fair value.

Financial assets are derecognized when the Company loses control of the contractual rights that comprise
the financial asset. The Company loses such controt if it realizes the rights to benefits specified in contract,
the rights expire or the Company surrenders those rights. Financial liabilities are de-recognized when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on subsequent
measurement and de-recognition is charged to the profit and logs account currently. The particular
measurement methods adopted are disclosed in the following individual policy statements associated with
each item:

Trade and other receivables -

" Trade debts and other receivables are carried at original invoice value less an estimate made for doubtful

debts based on a review of all oulstanding amounts at the year end. Bad debts are written off when
identified.

Borrowings

‘Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value and are subsequently siated at amorized cosl. Any

difference between the proceeds and the redemption value is recognized in the profit and loss account over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are initially recognized at fair value, which is normally the
transaction cost.

Off setting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount is reported in the financial statements
when there is a legally enforceable right to set off and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously. '

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise c¢ash in hand, cash at banks on current, saving and deposit accounts
and other short term highly liquid instruments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in values. .

Dividend and transfer of reserves

Dividend and transfers among reserves are treated as post balance sheet non-adjusting events. Hence, do
not qualify for provision in the financial statements in accordance with the requirements of |AS-10 'Events
after the reporting period'. These transfers are, therefore, recorded in the next year's financial statements.

2
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2.17 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting structure. Management
monitors the operating results of its segments separately fo the purpose of making decisions regarding
" resource allocation and performance assessment. '

Segment results that are reported to management include items directly attributable to a segment as well as
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Those income, expenses, assets, liabilities and other
balances which can not be allocated to a particular segment on a reasonable basis are reported as
unallocated. . ’ :

The Company has three reportable operating segments: i) Spinning (Producing different qualities of yarn),
iiy Knitting {Producing knitted fabric from yarn), iii) Processing and Garments (Processing of greige fabric for

preduction of dyed and white fabric and manufacturing of variety of garments from processed fabric).

Transactions among the operating segments are recorded at arm's length prices using admissible valuation
methods. Inter segment sales and purchases are eliminated from the total.

3. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL

2013 2012 i 29013 2012
(NUMBER OF SHARES) -~ (RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

60 000 000 €0 000 000 Ordinary shares of Rupees 10

each fully paid in cash 600,000 600,000
39 500 000 40833334  Cumulative preference shares

{non-voting) of Rupees 10 each _

fully paid in cash {Note 3.1 & 3.2} 395,000 408,333
99 500 000 100 833 334 ' 995,000 1,008,333

3.1 Movement during the year

40 833 334 47 500°001 As at 01 July ' 408,333 475,000
1333334 € 666 667 Cumulative preference shares -
(non-voting} of Rupees 10 each
' repaid during the year 13,333 __ 66,667
39 500 000 40 833 334 395,000 408,333

3.2 The Company issued cumulative preference shares as at 30 June 2005, which are listed on Lahore
Stock Exchange, to finance the working capital requirements and fixed capital expenditure.

Terms of redemption

a) Conversion option

Preference shareholders have the opticn to serve a notice to the Company to convert one third of the
preference shares along with accumulated dividend into ordinary shares of the Company after the expiry of
four years from the date of issuance in any conversion year at a discount of 15 percent to immediately
preceding 30 calendar days' average market value. Upon receiving the conversion notice, the Company will
have the option to repay the preference shares along with the accumulated dividend for which conversion
notice has been issued within one month of receiving thereof or issue ordinary shares to preference

shareholders.
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4.1

4.2

b) Call option

The Company has the option to redeem the preference shares after four yean:s of the issuance in part in
multiples of 10 percent upto 100 percent from the preference shareholders. The call price would be Rupees
10 per share plus the entire accumulated preference share dividend, if any.

¢) Rate of dividend

The preference dividend is payable at the average rate of six months KIBOR plus 2 percent per annum on
cumulative basis. According to the terms of issuance, dividend to ordinary shareholders could only be paid
after the payment of preference dividend to preference sharehoiders.

) Sinking fund reserve

The Company has created a sinking fund reserve (capital redemption reserve fund) from the profits of the
Company to make payments against any call option. The Company has built-up this sinking fund reserve to
ensure that at the end of the fourth year from the issuance date, the reserve is equal to one third of the total
amount of preference shares. This reserve account will subsequently be replenished to ensure that one
third of the outstanding preference shares amount is available in the reserve account.
2013 2012
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

RESERVES
Composition of reserves is as follows:
Capital
Share premium {Note 4.1) 400,000 400,000
Capital redemption reserve fund (Note 4.2) 133,333 141,666
533,333 541,666
Revenue
General 714,500 214,500
Unappropriated profit 2,864,134 2,616,055
) 3,578,634 2,830,555
4,111,967 3,372,221

This reserve can be utilized by the Company only for the purposes specified in section 83(2) of the
Companies Ordinance, 1984.

The Company has created this reserve from its profits to make payments against any call option of
preference shares.

SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF FREEHOLD LAND :
Openning balance 379,332 379,420

Add : Surplus on revaluation of freehold land 226,930 -
Less : Surplus realized on sale of land - 88
606,262 379,332
LONG TERM FINANCING - SECURED
Long term loans {Note 6.1) 2,858,665 3,198,158
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities (Note 12) 676,229 710,161
2,182,436 2,487,997
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6.1 Long term lcans

RATE OF INTEREST || NUMBER OF DATE OF INTEREST
LENDER A ‘ o2 ‘ ‘ PER ANNUM INSTALMENTS | ger ATMENT OF 1 pavanLe SECURITY
{RLIPEES IN THOUSANG)
6.1.1 Demand Flnances f Lang Term Finances {or Export Orlented Projects:
Unned Bank Limited 12,427 21,829 % Twanty lour, quariary 15 Februery 2008 COuarterly  FirsL chargs on spetific machinery
United Bank Limiled 281 4684 T% Twenty four, quariedy 31 March 2008 Quarerly  Firsl charge on specific machinery
Uniled Bank Limited 14,831 19,775 G Months KIBOR+2.00% Ten, hatt yearly 30 Decembar 2009 Hailyeary  Firsl charge on specific machinery
United Bank timited 7315 4.5M 10% Twenty four, quarterly 18 December 2010 Ouvarlery  First charge on specific machinery
United Bank Limiled 7,746 4,950 10% M Twanty fous, quarery 20 Jaruary 2011 Quarery  Firsl charge on specific machinery
United Bank Limited 2,106 2,687 10.25% Twanly four, quartery 10 May 2011 Quararly  Firsl charge on specific machinery
United Bank Limied - 2,604 9.20% Tweive, quarterty 23 May 2010 Quererly  First charge on specific machinery
United Bank Limited 1,887 2,040 10.25% Twenly four, quarterdy 03 Junz 2011 Quarterly  First charge on specific machinery
United Bank Limed - 14,187 2.20% Eight, quarterly 17 Jura 2011 Qugrlery  First charga on specific machinary
Unied Bank Limited - 12,313 10.30%-- Eight, quarteriy 12 July 2011 Quarterly  Firs1 charge on specific machinery
Untted Bank Limited 2,078 2,771 10.50% Twanly, uariery 20 July 2011 Cuarterly  Firsi charge on spesific machinery
United Bank Limited 11,258 13,504 10,50% Twanty kour, quariedy 12 Oclober 2011 Cuarterly  Firsi charge on specific machinery
United Bank Limited 11,801 35,402 1% Eight, quantary 01 March 2012 Quanerdy  Firsi charge on specific machinary
United Bank Limited 42,568 45,403 12.60% Sixleen, quariedy 12 Aprl 2013 Quarterdly  Firsl charge on specific machinery
Uniied Bank Limited 25,9868 25,985 12.60% Sixlegn, quariery 10 Soplamber 2013 Quarterly  FirsLcharga on specific machinesy
United Bank Limited 20,298 12.60% Sileen, quariery 03 Celober 2013 Quarterty  Firsl charge on specific machinary
United Bank Limited 30,511 11.10% Sixleen, quaredy 18 January 2014 Quanerty  Fist charge on specific machinery
United Bank Limited 28,089 . 10.80% Sixipan, quarterdy 02 Apdl 2074 Quarterly  Finsl chaige on specific machinery
Habibh Bank L1milsd 11,870 18,759 10% Twanly one, quarterty 09 January 2011 Quarterty  First charge on specific machinery
Habib Bank Limited 35,585 43,485 10% Twanty one, quarterty 22 February 2011 Quanetty  Fimst charge on specific machinery
Habib Bank Limited 13,128 17,166 10% Twenly cna, quartery 10 August 2011 Quararly  First charge on specific machinery
Habi Bank Limited 13,045 16,308 10.50% Twenty ons, quarterty 26 May 2012 Quararly  First change on specilic machinery
Habb Bank Limiled 44,185 54504 10.50% Twenty one, quartery 28 July 2032 Quarterly  Firs1 charga on epecific machinery
Habib Bank Limilad 23,573 28,119 10.50% Twen'y one, quarterty 06 August 2012 Quarterly  FIrs1 charge on specific machinesy
Habib Bank Limilad 32,476 40,117 10.50% Twenty one, querterly 17 Seplember 2012 Quarterly  Firsl charge on specific machinesy
Hahib Bank Limled 2,465 2876 10.50% Twenty one. querterly 21 Celober 2012 Quartery  FirsL charge on specific machinasy
Habub Bank Limiled 4,058 4,482 1.20% Twenty one, quarterly 28 March 2013 Quarterty  Firsl charge on spetific machinasy
Standard Charerad Bank {Pakislan) Limited 27478 38,468 10.40% Eight, half yearly 30 January 2012 Quarterly  First charga on spexcific machinasy
Standard Charterad Bask (Pakislan) Limited s 52,755 1110% Eighl, half yearly 30 January 2012 Quarterty ~ Firsl charge on specific machinery
Slandard Charterad Bank (Pakisian) Limited 8237 24711 11.00% Faur, half yearly 11 May 2012 Quartedly  Farsl charge on specific machinery
Pak Oman Invesimen Company Limited 101689 12,332 11.20% Twenly two, quarterty 15 July 2012 Quarierly ~ Fast gharge on specific machinesy
Pak Oman Invesiment Company Limited 9,042 27125 11.00% Twelve, quariarty 03 March 2011 Quanery  Fisl charge on specific machinery
Pak Cmart Invesiment Comparny Limited 8475 16,948 12.50% Twehes, quariarty 14 July 2011 Quarety  Fisl charge on specific machinery
Pakistan Kuwail Invesiment Company (F) Lid. 18,724 21,604 10,00% Thirly sigh, quarterly 24 Juty 2010 Quanefty  Flust charge on specific machinery
Pakistan Kuwail Imvestment Company (P} Lid, 12,675 14623 10.25% Thiy eigh, quarterty 05 September 2010 Quarlarly  First charga on specific machinery
Palislan Kuwail Investmertl Company (Pvr) Lid, 2,098 34614 10.25% Thitty cight, quarterly 20 Seplomber 2010 Guarlety  First charge on epecific machinery
Pakistan Kuwail Invesiment Compagty (Pvt) Lio. 7,842 9414 12.60% Eighleen, cuartsity 13 Decambpr2012  Quarterly  First charge on specific machwnefy
Paldstan Kuwall lvestment Compary (P) Lid. 55,500 82,350 12.60% Eighloen, quearierly  03Jonvary 201 Quarterly  First changa on specific machinery
Pakistan Kirvail nvestment Company (Pvtj Lid. 37479 - 12.60% Eighlean, quarerly 18 Apri 2014 Quarterty  First charge on specific machinery
NIB Bank Limied 240,264 - 10.90% Sixteen, quarterty 08 Aprl 2014 Quartsry  First charga on specific machinery
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited 5116 6,420 10.25% Twantty elghl, quartery 11 May 2010 Quarierty  First charge on specific machinery
Habib Melropolitan Bank Limited 3,466 3,879 10.25% Thirty two, quartarly 16 Juns 2012 Quarerdy  Fist charge on specific machinary
Habib Melrapoiilan Bank Limited 3,244 3707 10.50% Thirty two, quarledy 28 July 2012 Quarterty  Firsf charge on specific machinery
Hahib Melrapolitan Bank Limited 15,725 17.670 10.50% Thirty two, quartarty 24 August 2012 Quarterty  First charga on specific machinany
Hahib Metrapclitan Bank Limilsd 57,720 3,501 10.50% Thirty twe, quarierty ‘20 Oclober 2012 Quarterly  Firsi charge on specific machinary
The Bank of Punjab 26,178 7813 10.40% Sixlaan, quariedy 31 Qelober 2011 Quartedy  Firsl charge on spedltic machinery
The Bank of Punjab 33,053 48,275 11.10% Sixiaen, quariery 15 January 2012 Quarterly  Firs1 charge on specitic machinary
1,058,885 948,150
6.1.2 Syndicate Term Financed:
United Bank Limited 106,000 | 3 Months KIBOR+1.50°% Seven, hall yearly 22 Apdl 2010 Quarterly  Acquired by the company againsi fixed
Habih Bank Limited 105,000 unequal mstallments agsels and is secured by way of firs! pari
NIB Bank Limited . 45,000 pasu charge ower all present and lulurs
The Bank of Purjab 75,000 moveabls fixed assets of the Company and
Habib Malropoliian Bank Limited 45,000 merigage over immovable fixed essess of ha
Summil Bank Limited 45,000 GCampany.
The Bank ol Khyber 30,000
- 450,000
Syndicale Term Finance-ll:
Allied Bark Limited 200,000 200,000 | 3 Months KIBGR+1.50% Sixiaen, quarierly 4 Septemper 2013 Quarlerly  Acquired by the campany agains! permanant
Bna: E:‘r:I::w ::g.g :::::000 unequal inslaliments working capital requiraments and ie secured
nl i .
Dobai Islamie Bam:Pakislan Limited 200,000 zoo:g by way of fisl per pasu chargs aver al
Habib Bank Limiled 100,000 100,000 present and hure moveable fixed assets of
Nationai Bank of Pakislan 260,000 250,000 the Compary and morigage aver immaovabla
Pakistan Kuwait bwestment Co.{P) Lid, 125,000 125.000 fized assats of tha Company and personal
Standard Charterad Medaraba 70,000 70,000 gusrantea of tha Chiaf Executive Officer.
Stangard Chartered Bank [Pakistan) Limited 120,000 180,000
Sumimil Bank Limred 100,000 100,000
United Bank Limited 250,000 250,000
: 1,600,000 1,600,000
__2p58505 3,190,158
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7.1

7.2

LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE
Future rentals and year during which they fall due are as under:

203

2014

2015
2016
2017
2018

Less; Financial charges
Present value of minimum lease rental payments
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities {Note 12)

2013

2012

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

68,262
58,502
33,381
26,808

10,914

197,867

28,996

168,871
53,644

115,227

54,951
53,714
43,672
18,116
10,997

181,450
34,134

147,316
38,606

108,710

The value of minimum lease payments has been discounted using implicit interest rate of 10.59 percent
to 11.59 percent per annum (2012: 13.32 to 14.52 percent per annum). Balance rentals are payable in
monthly / quarterly and semi-annual installments. In case of default in any payment, an additional charge
at the rate of 0.1 percent par day shall be paid. Taxes, repairs and insurance costs are to be bome by the
Company. In case of termination of the agreement, the Company shall pay entire amount of rentals for
unexpired period of lease agreement. Lease agreement is renewable at the option of the lessor on such
terms as may be agreed upon. Liabilities are secured against deposits of Rupees 19.385 million (2012;

Rupees 12.597 million) included in long term security deposits.

Minimum lease payments and their present values are regrouped as

under:
2013 2012
Within More than | Within | More than
One year | oneyear | Oneyear | oneyear
- ) but less but less
than five than five
years years

Total of minimum lease payments 68,262 129,605 54,951. 126,499
Less: Financial charges 14,618 14,378 16,345 17,789
Present value of minimum lease payments 115,227 38,606 108,710

©

53,644
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8.1

B2

83

2013 2012
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

DEFERRED LIABILITY FOR GRATUITY

Opening balance 257,072 223,885
Add: Provision for the year (Note 8.1) 110,088 " 105,904
' 367,160 329,789

Less: Payments made during the year {58,470) {63,592)
Decrease / (Increase) in current liability - net ' 5,670 (9,125)

| (52,800) (72,717)

314,360 257,072

Provision for the year:

Current service cost 75,232 73,263
Interest cost 34,856 32,641
’ 110,088 105,804

Recongciliation of present value of defined benefit obligations as at 30 June is given below:

Present value of defined benefit obligations as at 01 July 268,127 233,150

Current service cost 75,232 73,263
Interest cost - 34,856 32,641

Benefits paid during the year , (58,470) (63,592)
Decrease / (Increase) in current liability - net 5,670 ' {9,125)
Agctuarial loss on present value 18,659 . 1,790
Present value of defined benefit obligations as at 30 June 344,074 268,127

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligations and liability recognized as at 30 June is
given below: : :

Present value of defined benefit obligations as at 30 June . 344,074 268,127
Unrecognized actuarial loss-accumulative {(29.714) : (11,055) -
Recognized liability . 314,360 257,072

Principal Actuarial Assumptions;

Discount rate ‘ 10.50% 13%
per annum per annum

Expected rate of increase in salary in future years : : 9.50% : 12%
: per annum per annum

Average expected remaining life time of employees 13 years 13 years

(33)
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8.4 The present value of defined benefit obligation is as follows:

9.1

9.1.1

10.

Present value of defined
benefit obligations

Experience adjustment arising
on plan liabilities

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors '

Advances from customers
Accrued liabilities

Income tax deducted at source
Sales tax deducted at source

Workers’ welfare fund
Workers’ profit participation fund (Note 9.1)

Unclaimed dividend

Workers’ Profit Participation Fund
Balance as at 01 July '
Add: Provision for the year ( Note 28)
Interest for the year ( Note 30)

Less: Payments during the year

[ 2013 | 2012 | 2011 | 2010 | 2009
------------- (RUPEES IN THOUSAND) w-reermmermemereemees
344,074 268,127 233150 192,905 146,469

18,659 1,790 2246 9320  (2,948)
2013 2012

{RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

1,558,089 1,296,852
46,068 19,072
584,025 724,032
11,475 7,230

10,997 L

- 3,155

59,613 52,720
8,369 8,132

- 2,278,636 2,111,193
52,720 49,931
59,613 52,720
3,290 2,450

115,623 " 105,101
56,010 52,381

__ 59613 ~ 52,720

The Company retains workers' profit participation fund for its business operations till the date of allocation
to workers. Interest is paid at prescribed rate under the Companies Profit (Workers' Participation) Act,
1968 on funds utilized by the Company till the date of allocation to workers.

ACCRUED MARK-UP
Long term financing

Short term borrowings

43,892 49,554
140,413 124,364
184,305 173,918
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11

12,

13.

14.

SHORT TERM BEORROWINGS - SECURED

These represent the finances obtained from banking companies which are secured by way of first,
second and third equitable mortgage on fixed assets of the Company, first joint pari pasu charge over
current assets of the Company, pledge and personal guarantee of directors. Mark-up is paid at the rate of
2.51% per annum to 12.35% per annum (2012: 2.95% per annum tc 15.54% per annum). The sanctioned
credit facilities are Rupees 9,175 million (2012: Rupees 8,725 million).

2013 2012
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

CURRENT PORTION OF NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term financing (Note 6) 676,229 710,161
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease (Note 7) ' 53,644 38,606
729,873 748,767

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
a) Contingencies -

Guarantees of Rupees 68.104 million (2012: Rupees 71.482 million) have been given by the banks of the
Company to Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited against gas connections and Collector of Customs,
Lahore for import licence fee.

b) Commitments

i) Contracts for capital expenditure are amounting to Rupees 56.445 million (2012: Rupees 163.440 million)
and other than capital expenditure are Rupees 126.296 million (201_2: Rupees 196.850 million).

ii) ljarah (operating lease) commitments - Company as lessee

The Company obtained vehicles under ijarah (operating lease) agreement. The lease terms are three to
five years. The Company has given undertaking to purchase the leased vehicles on agreed purchase
price at maturity.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under ijarah (operating lease) are as follows:

Not [ater than one year 20,112 15,967
Later than one year and not later than five years _ 25,395 36,770
45,507 52,737

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating fixed assets

-Owned ( Note 14.1) ' 5,248,413 4,521,584
-Leased ( Note 14.1) ' 208,666 173,431
Capital work-in-progress (Note 14.2) 65,016 54,760

5,622,095 4,749,775
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14.1.1

14.1.2

OPERATING FIXED ASSETS

At 01 July 2011
Gost/ revalued amount
Accumulaled depreciation
Net book value
Year ended 30 June 2012
Opening net hook valua
Additions
Transfer:

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Deletions
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Depraciayon ¢harge
Closing net book value
At 30 June 2012
Geat/ revalued amount
Accumuiated dapraciation
Net book value
Year anded 30 June 2013
Opening net book velus
Revaluation surpius
Addttions
Teansfer:

Cosl

Actumulated depreciation

Deletions
Cosl/ revaued amount
Accumulated deprecialion

Depreclation charge
Clasing ne! book vatue
Al 30 June 2013
Cost/revatued amaunt
Accumulated depreclation
Net boek value

Annual rate of deprecietion (%)

OWNED LEASED !
Freehold || Buildings on Plant and Eleclic and Factory Telephene || Fumiture and Oifice Computer Plant and
. gas . . N . . Vehicles Total n Vehicles Total
land freehold land || machinery instaations equipment || installations Txtures equipment equipment machinery
= {RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
o
723,816 809,459 3,720,313 277,350 69,054 17,615 127.605 36842 169,020 177,016 6,095,590 164,289 126,819 293,108 \|
- (165,958) _ {1,219,921} (92,488) (34,661} {10,877) (62,732) (2.428) {84,060} 98,458) _ (1,799,594) (65,120) (23,659) (66,879) |
4@&&.&% 184851 34293, 6738, 84,873 Latz TA960 80508 4295996 99160 __ 104,860 __ 204,120
723,816 623,501 2,500,692 184,851 34,393 6,738 64,873 1,414 74,960 80,558 4,298 998 99,169 104,960 204,128
29,130 53,655 354,648 44,735 337 7 19,401 367 16,794 34,511 597,335 - 38,201 339,201
I I ! I N DR I I
- - (41 545) - - - - . - (467) (42,012 41,545 42,012
- - 38,455 - - - - 39,302 (38,455) (647) (39,302)
| (11.235)” (10,451) (23.533)” ” “ (6)" (10)“ (355)” (60]” (2:3.507)” (69, 262)“ - | | - ” - |
1,690 11,354 - - 3 5 2n 12,365 25,700 - - . -
" ,2:35) 8.761) (12,264} - - (3 ] (84 (49) (11,142} (43,582} . - -
(32,859) (264,343) {20,990) (3,331) {1,062) (10,889) (221) (16,515) (1727 (367,487 (8,497 (22,100 (30,587)
R ZINE T11 £€35,536 2,657,368 208.596 34,379 6,450 73,381 1476 75,190 B7 497 4,621,584 52,217 121,214 173,431
741,711 852,663 4,171,823 322,085 72,371 16,286 148,956 3.854 185,754 189,334 6,704,977 84,285 466,706 250,995
- (217,127) (1,514,455} (113,489} (37.692) (11,938) (73,615} (2,978) (110.564) (107,837) _ (2,183,383) (32,072) {45,482} {77.564)
—lALTI1 635536 2657368 _ 208,506 34,379 £450 73,381 1,476 75.150 57497 __ 4.521584 pE217 121,214 173431
41,711 635,535 2,657,368 208,596 34,378 6,450 73,381 1,478 75,180 87,497 4,521,584 52,217 121,214 173,431
228,630 - - - . - - - - . 226,930 . - -
44,519 55,167 T17.681 38,996 3,372 1,310 17,943 84 20,482 9,493 909,027 60,650 9,360 69,010
- - - - - - - - - 1,399 \ ” . 355)” {1,380}
. - - - - - - - - (472 472 - 472 472
- - . - . - - - - 927 . 827) g27)
¥
I I~ I N I I N N | I I I
- 12,561 - - - - - - 3,754 16,622 - - -
- t943) (8,534) - - R - - - - {4,681) " {14,158) - - -
- (33,008) (289.561) (22,754) {3,366} (1.078) {12,288) (227) (17.001) (16,621) {395,697) (8,078} 123,768) (32,848)
1,013,160 656,754 3,076,954 224,838 34,395 6.682 79,041 1,333 78,651 76,615 5248413 103,73§ 104,678 208,666
1,013,160 906,580 4,688,409 361,081 75,743 19,696 164,939 3,935 206,216 191,791 7,811,553 144,939 173,867 318,606
. (249.826)  (1,791,455) {136,243) {41,358} (13.014) (85.898) (2.605) {127.565) (115,178) _ (2.563.140) 41,151 {68,769} {109.940)
1,013,160 656,754 3,076,954 224,838 34,365 6,662 79,041 1..3£ 78,651 76,615 5.248,4173 103,788 104,878 208:666
- 5 10 10 10 15 15 15 20 20 10 20
Freehoid land of the Company was revalued as al 28 June 2013 by an independent valuer using macke1 value method and stated in note 14,1 at appl d value. P by, it was r by an independem valuer as at 30 June 2097 and 3C September

1895, Had thare been no revaiualion on that cate. 1he value of (reehold land would have baen lowar by Aupeas 506262 milllon (2012: Rupees 376,332 million). The book value of freshek land on cosl basis is Rupees 406.698 millon (2012 Rupees 362.379

milion).

Depraciation charge for the year has been alkeated as tollkews:

Owned;

Cest of geles (Note 25)
Distribution cost (Note 26)
Administrative expenses {Note 27)

Leased;

Gos1 of sales (Nete 25)
Distribution ¢ost (Nele 26)
Administrative expenses (Note 27)

2013 2012
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
348,687 321,523
614 601
48,596 45,363
385,697 367 487
9,079 8,497
5,930 5,727
17.83¢% 16,373
32,848 30,597
426,745 398,084

QALIAYL S TIIN A TLXAL AOOSVIN
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14,1.3 Detail of operating fixed assats, exceeding the book value of Rupees 50,000 disposed of during the year is as follows:

ACCUMULATED| BOOK | SALE/CLAIM| ° MODE OF _
P
DESCRIPTION QOST DEPRECIATION| VALUE | PROCEEDS DISPOSAL PARTICULARS OF PURCHASERS
------------ (RUPEES IN THOUSAND)~-—~-------

BUILDING . '
Yarn Market Shop 1,250 307 943 1,100 Negotiation  Muharnmad Saljad,Sariraz Colony, Faisalabad
PLANT & MACHINERY
Stitching/ Overlock Machines 21,095 12,561 8,534 5,400 Negotiation  Babar Engineering, Faisatabad
VEHICLES

i - Mr. Muhammad Umair Younis, Diglaspura,
FSK-1878, Toyota Corrota 1,123 789 334 532 Negotiation Faisalabad
FSG-7876, Toyola Corola 576 a7 220 488 o gepammad Amiad Rl 246 GB, Toba ek
FSB-3776, Cuore 213 138 77 241 -do- Mr. Sagib Hanif, Safdarabad, Sheikhupura
LZ5-6666, Toyota Corrola 424 124 300 774 do.  Aws Nalma Rashid, A block, Sabzazar Scheme,

Mr. Muhammad Javed, Saddige e Akbar Town
FDA-10-1502, Toyota Corrola 927 119 808 1,363 -do- Faisalabad
LEB-11-1044, Suzuki Bolan 845 176 469 800 Insurence Claim The Universal Insurance Company Lirnited
- FSG-12786, Suzuki Cultus a7y 197 180 225 Negotiation  Mr. Makhdoom Ahmad (Company Employee)

FSH-8576, Suzuki Cultus 326 167 159 542 -do- Mr. Raza Hassan, Haiderabad, Faisalabad
FSB-3376, Cuore 193 130 63 229 -do- Mr. Sharafat Ali, Femmozwala, Sheikhupura
FDA-05-1304, Cuore 692 398 294 440 -do- Mr. Zulifgar All, Chak No. 8, Sheikhupura
FDA-10-1525, Suzuki Cultus 856 427 469 875 -do- Mr. Bilal Shahzad, Jhang Road, Faisalabad
FDA-07-176, Toyota 2.0D Saloon 620 245 375 500 «tfo- Mr. Shafouq Subhani, Madina Town, Faisalabad

Book value of olher assets disposed of during the year was less than Bupees 50,000,

142 CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS
Building .

Plant and machinery

Advances against purchase of land

Advances against purchase of machinery

14.3

capitalization rate of 12.60% per annum (2012 : 12.60% per anrium),

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

Biomass Power Geneartion Limited - unquoted

15

16000 { 2012 : Nil ) ordinary shares of
Rupees 10 each ( Note 15.1)

Share of post acquisition reserve:

As at 01 July
Share of loss after income tax

As at 30 June

2013 2012
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

10,422 10,313
48,906 9,406
5,688 6,198
. 28,843
65,016 54,760

Borrowing cost of Rupees 5.408 million (2012 ; Rupees 0.934 million) was capitalized during the year using the

160 -

(160} ) -

(160) -
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15.1

16.

16.1

16.1.1

16.2

16.3

The Company holds 40% (2012 Nil} interest in Biomass Power Generation-timited;an unquoted public limited
compﬁny formed for Power Generation . The summarized financial information of this Company is as follows:

Associate's balance sheet :

Current assets

" Non-current assets

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Net liabilities
Associate's revenue and profit :

Revenue - .
Loss before taxation for the year
Loss after taxation for the year -

LONG TERM ADVANCES
Consldered good - secured

Advahqes to employees
Executives (Note 16.1)
Other employees

Less : Current portion shown.under current assets (Note 20}

Reconciliation of advances given tc executives is given below:
Opening balance as at 01 July

Add: Disbursement made during the year

Less: Recovered during the year
Closing balance as at 30 June

2013

2012

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

12,822

15,564
{515}
(27.981)

(0

420
420

9,673

364

10,037
3,983
6,054

6,728
4,500
11,228
1,565
9,673

6,728
1,025

7,753

2,745

5,008

5,110
3,250
8,360
1,632
6,728

Maximum balance due from executives at the end of any month during the year was Rupees 10.248 million {2012 ;

Rupees 7.125 million).

These include the interest free advances to Company's employees recoverable in equal monthly installments and

- secured against lien on residential houses of the employees.

.

The fair value adjustment in accordance with the requirements of IAS 39 ‘Financial Instriiments:- Recognition and
Measurement’ arising in respect of advances to employees is.not considered material and hence not recognized.
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17.

171

18.

18.1

19.

19.1

20.

~ Employees - Interest free:

f

2013 2012
- L (RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS .
Stores . 737808 713,125
Spare parts ' . 167,522 137,365
Loose tools 1,303 2,611
906,634 853,101

Stores and spare parts include items which may result in fixed capital expenditure but are not distinguishable at

this stage.

STOCK IN TRADE
Raw materials 2,192,148

Work-in-process 1,754,040
Finished goods {Note 18.1) 2,527,997

Waste 27,335

6,501,520

1,989,668
1,506,975
1,131,604

18,336

T 4,646,583

This includes stocks amounting to Rupees 134.348 milion {2012 : Rupees 117.241 million) valued at net realizable

value.

TRADE DEBTS

Considered good:

Secured ( against Ietters‘ of credit ) © - 888,990 -

Unsecured . ‘ . 2,943,228

3,832,218

]

Considered dqubtful: .

Others - unsecured 24,832

Less: Provision for doubtful debts - 24,832

677,207

2,872,909
3,550,116
——

24,832
24,832

As at 30 June 2013, trade debts of Rupees 302.336 million (2012 : Rupees 175.627 million) were past due but not
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers from whom there is no recent history of default. The

ageing analysis of these trade debts is as follows:

Upte 1 Vmo_r_\t_h 193,584

1 10 6 months _ ' 77,559
More than 6 months 31,193

‘ ) ) 302,336 |
LOANS AND ADVANCES

Considered good:

101,216
56,967
17,444

- 175,627

- Against expenses T~ 25,576
Against salary 33,406

: ‘ . - 58,982

Current portion of long term advances (Note 16) - - : 3,983
Advances to suppliers 656,270

' 719,235

15,734
39,492

55,226
2,745
226,920

284,801
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21. SHORT TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Letters of credit

Short term prepayments

Margin against letters of credit/guarantees
Security deposits

Income tax

22, OTHER RECEIVABLES
Considered good:
Sales tax
Export rebates
Others

23. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand
With banks on:
Current accounts .
Saving accounts
including US$ 23,940 (2012 : US$ 25,220)

12013

(KT

2012

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

33,921
10,712
4,832
2,357
359,147

410,969

522,103
209,039
140,292
871,434

4,750

166,454

354,428

520,882
525,632

54,351
10,131
4,956
2,745
263,617

335,800

268,796
- 151,538
120,961
541,295

2,829

230,758

691,797
922,555

925,384

23.1 Rate of profit on bank deposits ranges from 7.5% to 11.00% {2012: 5% to 11.50%) per annum.

24, SALES
Local
Export { Note 24.1)
Waste
Knitting / dyeing income

693,354

21,374,524 .

593,634
83,077

22,744,589

457,240
18,223,028
530,100
64,425
19,274,793,

24,1 Exchange gain due to currency rate fluctuation refating to export sales amounting to Rupees 136.588 million (2012;

Rupees 94.950 million) has been included in export sales.

0
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23.

25.1

26.

COST OF SALES

Raw material consumed

Salaries, wages and other benefits
Staff relirement benefits

Fuel and power

Dyes and chemicals

Stores and spare parts

Packing materials and other charges
Outside knitting, dyeing and CMT charges
Repair and maintenance

Insurance

Other factory overheads ( Note 25.1)
Depreciation - owned assets (Note 14.1.2)
Depreciation - leased assets (Noile 14.1.2)

Work-in-process:
Opening stock
Closing stock

Cost of goods manufactured
Finished goods:

Opening stock

Closing stock

2013 -

18,838,816

2012
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
10,706,874 8,233,468
2,889,541 2,352,665
88,829 86,221
1,077,716 846,290
1,033,620 867,101
447,414 301,553
1,881,689 1,234,577
893,578 545,725
527,715 380,476
58,448 45,417
528,083 385,950
348,687 321,523
9,079 8,497
20,491,273 15,600,463
1,506,975 1,317,446
(1,754,040) (1,506,975)
(247,065) (189,529)
20,244,208 15,419,934
1,149,940 1,782,488
(2,555,332) (1,149,940)
{1,405,392) 632,548
16,052,482

This includes ijarah ( opeating lease } rentals amounting to Rupees 21.428 million (2012 : Rupees 5.000 million) of

vehicles.

DISTRIBUTION COST

Salaries, wages and other benefits

Staif retirement benefits

Commission to selling agents

Insurance

Traveling and conveyance

Vehicles’ running

Printing and stationery

Communication

Outward freight and distribution )
Depreciation - owned assets (Note 14.1.2)
Depreciation - leased assets (Note 14.1.2)

62,685
5,410
355,169
3,201
16,389
4,533
627

11,592

804,702
614
5,930

1,270,852

41,570
4,743
394,035
2,900
13,046
3,183
511
7333
436,793
o601
5,727

910,442
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2013 2012
{RUPEES iN THOUSAND)
27. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and other benefits ) 208,535 159,926
Staff retirement benefits . 15,850 14,941
Rent, rates and taxes(Note 27.1) 7,991 4,983
Traveling and conveyance 11,085 7,289
Entertainment 9,355 8,335
Repair and maintenance 3,695 2,792
Vehicles' nunning 11,475 7,381
Printing and statichery ‘ 5,998 . 4,193
Communication 12,816 . 8,577
Legal and professional 1,464 . 1,974
Newspapers and petriodicals 87 83
Electricity & sui gas _ 10,018 , 6,848
Auditors’ remuneration (Note 27.2) : - 1,377 1,202
Subscription and fee ’ 89,717 8,091
"Advertisement ’ 1,026 1,455
Insurance 8,296 6,953
Miscellaneous : 2,392 3,764
Depreciation - owned assets {Note 14.1.2) 46,596 45,363
Depreciation - leased assets (Note 14.1.2) 17,839 16,373

385,512 310,523

274 This includes ijarah (operating lease) rentals amounting to Rupees 2.756 million (2012 : Rupees 3.763 million) of
vehicles. ’

27.2 Auditors' remuneration -

Annual audit fee ' 1,100 1,000
Half yearly review fee 175 100
Corporate governance compliance review fee 50 50
Reimbursable expenses 52 52
1,377 1202

28. OTHER EXPENSES
] Workers' profit participation fund {(Note 9.1} 59,613 52,720
- Debit balances written off : - 11,664
Workers' welfare fund : _ - 1,257
59,613 65,641

29, OTHER INCOME

Income from non-financial assets

Sale of stores and scrap ) 4,806 3,318

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 643 . 11,162
5,449 14,480

Income from financial assets

Mark-up on saving accounts ‘ 40,037 48,383

45,436 62,863
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30.

31.

at

32.

33.

a3

FINANCE COST
Interest / mark-up on:
Long term financing
Short term borrowings

- Interest on workers’ profit participation fund (Note 9.1)

Amortization on long term finance caiculated using the
effective interest method ‘

‘Llabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Bank charges and commission

TAXATION

Current year
Prior year adjustment

The Company falls in the ambit of final tax regime under section 169 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Provision

2013
(RUPEES IN THG

329,320
615,722
3,290

18,885
138,709
1,105,926

222,712
126
222,838

2012
USAND)

214,702
664,425
2,450

1,176
19,125
97.460

999,338

181,762
{17,898)
163,864

for income tax is made accordingly. However, provision for tax on other income is made al current tax rates after
considering the rebates and tax credits, if any, and accumulated tax losses. No provision for deferred taxation is
required due to final tax on exports. Reconciliation of tax expense and product of accounting profit mult|pI|ed by the

applicabie tax rate is not required in view of final tax on export.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Baslec earnings per share

Profit after taxation - (Rupees in thousand)

Weighted average number of ~ (Numbers)

ordinary shares

Earnings per share - Basic (Rupees)

Diluted earnings per share

Profit after taxation (Rupees in thousand)
Weighted average number of (Numbers)
shares .
Earnings per share - Diluted (Rupees) -

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Profit before taxation

Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items:
Depreciation

Provision for gratuity

Gatin on sale of property, plant and equipment

Debit balances written off

Finance cost

Share of loss from associate

Working capital changes {Note 33.1)

Working capital changes .
(Increase) / decrease In current assets

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Stock in trade

Trade debts

Loan and advances

Short term deposits and prepayments

Other receivables

Increase In current llabilities
Trade and other payables

®

906,358
60 000 000

16.11

" 906,358
77 994 682

11.62

1,129,196

428,745
110,088
(643)
1,105,926
160
(2,761,818)

11,654

(53,533)
(1,854,937)
{282,102)
(434,344)
20,361
(330,139)
(2,934,694)

172,876
(2,761,818)

835,366
60 000 000

13.92

835,366
84 948 470

9.83

999,230

398,084
105,904
{11,162)
11,664
999,338

(540,646)
1,962,412

(222,083)
249,407
(585,220)
(99,546)
(28,786)

56,118

(630,110)

89,464
(540,846)
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34.

35.1

35.2

36.

37.

37.1

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

. _Boand of Birectors -of the Company have proposed a cash dividend for the ordinary shareholders of the Company

for the year anded 30 Juns 2013 amounting to Rupees 1.75 (2012: Rupees 1.75) per share and preference
dividend for the preference shareholders of the Company amounting to Rupees 1.27 (2012: Rupees 1.49) per
share and approved transfer of Rupaes Nil million {(2012: Rupees 500 million} from Unappropriated Profit to General
Raserve of the Company at their meeting held on 05 October 2013. However, these events have baen considered
as non-adjusting events under IAS-10 and have not been recognlzed in these financial statemenis.

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

Aggregate amount charged in the financial slatements for the year for remuneration, allowances including all
benefits to the Chief Executive Officer, Directors and Executives of the Company are as follows:

DESCRIPTION 2013 2012
- Chief Directors | Executlves Chief Directors | Executives
Executive Executive
Officer Officer
RUPEES IN THOUSAND
Managerlal remuneration 2,550 2,060 51,143 2,400 2,060 34,924
House rant 1,020 644 21,194 960 828 14,372
Ofther allowances 255 437 15,635 ~ 240 457 13,499
3,825 3,141 87,972 3,600 3,345 62,795
4 67 1 4 47

Number of persons ) E]

The chief executive officer, some of the directors and some of the executives are provided free use of Company’s

maintained vehicles.

directors.
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Number of employeas as on 30 June
Average number of employees during the year

PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

.SPINNING
Production at normal capacity converted to 20s
count based on three shifts pe " day.

Actual produdtion converted to 20s count
based on three shifts per day.

KNITTING
Production at normal capacity based on
three shifts per day.

Actual production based on three shifts
per day.

DYEING / FINISHING
Production at normal capacity on reactive
dyeing basis at three shifts per day.

Actual production converted on reactive

dyeing basis at three shifts per day.
GARMENTS

Production at normal capacity converted on
normal / basic garments capacity based on
single shift per day.

Actual production converted on normal / basic
garments capacity basis on single shift per day.

REASONS FOR LOW PRODUCTION

(Kgs .)

(Kgs .)

(Kgs .)

(Kgs .)
{Kgs .)

{Kgs .)

{Dzn.)

(Dzn.)

' Meeting fee amounting 1o Rupees 0.080 million (2012: Rupees 0.100 million) has been paid to non-executive

2013 2012
{(Number of Persons)
17 667 16 715
17 223 14 534
2013 2012

{FIGURES IN THOUSAND)

4762

4 385

34 452

19 536
34 020

20 422

5838

4 304

4762

4383 °

28 784

14 552

32 364

17 812

5045

3 463

Under utilization of available capagcity is due to normal maintenance, gas /electric supply shutdown and initial
period of additional installations of production facilities. Knitting machines are available for ditferent typas of fabric
for which orders are based on seasonal basis resulting under utilization of actual knitting capacity alongwith trial
run effect of additional machines installed during the year under reference. .

4
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3. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Eliminatlon of
innl | .
Spinning Knitting Processing & Garments intersegment transactions Total- Company
2013 2012 213 I 2012 2013 J 22 2013 l 2012 2013 2012
e ————————{RJPEES IN THOUSAND}————-——————
Salss 2105165 1,864,481 8,706,435 4838084 21691753 18461,018 (7,650,764} (5,880.700) 22744589 19,274,793
Cosl of sales {1,970.488) [1,783373) (6,475,828) (4,668,746) (18,038,284) (15,488,153) 7,650,764  5,368.790 (18,838,816) (16,052,482)
Gross Prafit 125,697 81,168 26,607 169,338 3553460 2,971,665 - - 3805773 3222311
Distribution cost {28233)  (18.839) (108,961) (6G.658) (1,130,852}  (821,948) . o | Dzmgsz)| (91044
Administrative expenses {19,110) (16,925) {61,745) (48,681} {304,657) {244,917) - - [385,512) {310,523)
(47,349 (35,784} {170,706) (118,339) (1,438,308) (1,066,862) - - {1,656,364) (1,220,965} -
Profit hefora taxalion and ’
unalogated income and expenses 78,348 45,344 55,901 50988 2115160 1,905,003 T - 2,249,409 2,001,346
UnaBocated income and expensas:
Olhgr axpanses : {59.613) {65,841}
Other income ' 45,486 62,863
Finance cost (1,705,926) {999,338}
Share of loss from associate {160} -
Taxation (222,838) . (163.864)
Profit aftsr taxation 906,358 835,366
38.1 Reconciliation of reporiable segment assets and liabilitles
Spinning Knltting Processing & Garments Total- Company
2013 | 2012 2013 [ 2012 213 [ 2012 2003 | 2012
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)—
Segment Assels ) 887,667 731723 1869996 1562940 10,173,586 7954788 12,930,243 10,240,461
" Unaflocaled assets 6,400,648 5,668,751

19,330,895 15,518,212

Segment Liabilitiss 88,550 B5.524 881,535 403,319 1,939,235 1690488 2,709,320  2,481,3N

Unallocated Liabikties . 10,908,345 8,676,995
' 13,617,666 11,158,426

38.2 Geographical Information

38.2.1 The company's revenua irom extemnal customers by geographical location is detailed bedow:

2013 2012
{RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
America & Canada 17,935.408 . 15,264,337
Europe 2,530,002 1,681,388
Asia, Africa, and Australia 809,114 1,077,303
Pakistan . 1,370,065 1,051,765
22,744,569 19,274,793
—_—

38.2.2 All non currem assets of the company as al reporting datas are located and operating in Pakistan,

38.3 Revenue from major customers .
Revenue from major custemers of the Company's Garments segmenl represent Rupees 5,442 milion {2012: Rupees 11,003 milion}, Revenue !rorn other segments of the

Company doss not include any major customer.
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39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

39.1 Financial risk factors

(a)

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: -market risk {including currency risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and ligquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management programme focuses on-the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the financial performance.

Risk management is carried ouf by the Company's finance department under policies approved by the Board of
Directors. The Board provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas
such as currency risk, other price risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, investment of excess liquidity and
use of non-derivative financial instruments.

Market risk

(i}

(if)

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign axchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial
transactions cr receivables and payables that exist due to transactions in foreign currencies.

The Company is exposed to cumency risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to
the United States Dollar (USD). Currently, the Company’s foreign exchange risk exposure is restricted to
bank balances, the amounts receivable / payable from / to the foreign entities. The Company uses forward
exchange contracts to hedge its foreign currency risk, when considered appropriate. The Company's
exposure to currency risk was as follows:

- 7 . 2013 2012
Cash at banks - USD 23,940 25,220
Trade debts - USD - 37,018,165 ‘ 36,002,457
Trade and other payable - USD (96,923} {414,613)
Net exposure - USD 36,945,182 35,613,064
Following exchange rates were applied during the year: ‘

- Rupees per US Dollar .
Average rate 7 96.47 © 8899
Reporting date rate 98.60 94.00

Sensitivity analysis

If the functional currency, at reporting date, had weakened / strengthened by 5% against the USD with all
other variables held constant, the impact on profit after taxation for the year would have been Rupees
173.033 million (2012: Rupees 159.012 million ) respectively higher / lower, mainly as a result of exchange
gains / losses on translation of foreign exchange denominated financial instruments. Currency risk
sensitivity to foreign exchange movements has been calculated on a symmeiric basis. In management's

- opinicn, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of inherent currency risk as the year end exposure does

not reflect the exposure during the year.

Other price risk

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency
risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its
issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instrument traded in the market. The Company is not exposed

L:s)

to commodity price risk.
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(iii) Interest rate risk

This represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The Company has no interest-bearing assels except for bank balances in saving accounts. The Company's
interest rale risk arises from long term financing, liabilities against assets subject to finance lease and short
term borrowings. Financial instruments at variable rates expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk.
Financial instruments at fixed rate expose the Company to fair vatue interest rate risk.

Al the balance sheet date the intereslt rate profile of lhe Company’s interest bearing financial instruments
was: .

2013 2012
{RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

Fixed rate instruments

Financial liabilities .
Long term [inancing 1,043,834 : 928,383

Floating rate Instruments

Financlal assets

Bank balances - saving accounts 354,428 T 691,797
" Fimancial liabilities

Long term financing : 1,814,831 : 2,269,775

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 168,871 147,316

Short term borrowings 7,590,117 5,088,907

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rate at the balance sheet date would not affect profit or loss of the
Company. .

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments ,

If interest rates, at the year end date, fluctuates by 1% higher / lower with all other variables held constant,
impact on profit after taxation: for the year would have been Rupees 87.584 million (2012: Rupees 64.735
million) lower / higher, mainly as a result of higher / lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings. This
analysis is prepared assuming that amounts of liabilities outstanding at balance sheet dates were
outstanding for the whole year.

{(b) Creditrisk

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by
failing to discharge an obligation. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was as follows:

Trade debts 3,832,218 3,550,116
Loans and advances 43,443 47,245
Deposits 22,908 - 21,363
Other receivables } ) 140,292 120,961
Bank balances ) 520,882 922 555

4,559,743 4,662,240

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external
credit ratings (If available) or to historical information about counterparty default rate. The external credit rating of

o
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(c)

Company's bankers is given below:

Rating 2013 | 2012
Short term | Long term |  Agency (Rupees in thousand)

Banks
National Bank of Pakistan . A1+ AAA JCR-VIS 5,224 3,958
Allied Bank Limited - Al+ AA+ PACRA 50,178 78,684
Askari Bank Limited o Al+ AA PACRA 3,041 5,307
Bank Alfalah Limited Al+ AA PACRA 1,729 732
First Women Bank Limited A2 A- PACRA 112 110
Habib Bank Limited A1+ AA+ JCR-VIS 8,493 10,709
Habib Metropclitan Bank Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA 182,971 250,232
Bank Al-Habib Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA 337 450
MCB Bank Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 11,124 6,681
NIB Bank Limited Al+ AA - PACRA 96,681 2,884
The Bank of Punjab Al+ AA - PACRA 33,436 132,088
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited A-1 A JCR-VIS 979 1,000
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited Al+- AAA FPACRA 3,669 44,719
United Bank Limited A1+ AA+ JCR-VIS 13,134 198,156
Burj Bank Limited A-1 A JCR-VIS 8,314 399
Summit Bank Limited A-3 A- JCR-VIS 124,801 182,473
HSBC Bank Middle East Limited P-1 A2 Moody's 1,059 2,712
Meezan Bank Limited 7 A1+ AA JCR-VIS 15,600 1,261

520,882 922,555

The Company's exposure to credit risk and impairment losses related to trade debts is disclosed in Note 19,

parties on their obligations to the Company. Accordingly the credit risk is minimal.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial

liabilities,

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities. At 30 June 2013, the Company had Rupees 1,585 million (2012:

925.384 million) cash and bank balances. Management believes the liquidity risk to be low.

©

" Due to the Company's long “standing business relationships with these counterparties and after giving due .
consideration to their strong financial standing, management does net expect non-performance by these counter

‘Rupees 3,636 million) available borrowing limits from financial institutions and. Rupees 525.632 million (2012:
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(d)

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 30 June 2013:

Carrying Contractual || 6 months or

Amount Cash flows loss 6-12months || 1-2 Years ||More than 2 years

( RUPEES IN THOUSANDV)

Non-derivative financial liabilies:

L.ong term financing 2,858,665 3,866,072 470,554 492202 930,662 1,972,654

Liabilities against assets _

subject to finance lease 166,871 197,867 34,271 33991 - 58,502 - 71,103

Short term borrowings 7,500,117  7,730530 5,612,730 2,117,800 . -

Trade and other payables 2,150,483 2,150,483 1,640,970 509,513 . -

Accrued mark-up 184,305 184,305 184,305 - . C-
12,952,441 14,129,257 7,942,830 3,153506 989,164 2,043,757

The following are the contractual maturities of financlal liabilities as at 30 June 2012:

Carrying Confragtual ||6 months or
Amount Cash flows less

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND } -

6-12months || 1-2Years | More than 2 years

Non-derivative financial liabilies:

Long term financing 3,198,158 4,320,686 482393 . 467,017 838,353 2,541,933
Liabilities against assets o
subject to finance lease 147,316 181,450 27,638 27,313 53,714 72,785
Short term borrowings 5,088,907 5213271 3,284,768 1,928,503 - -
Trade and other payables 2,029,016 . 2,029,016 1,436,358 592,658 - : -
Accrued mark-up 173,918 173,918 173,918 - - -
10,637,315 11,827,351 5,405,075 3,015,401 892,067 .2,614,718

Short term borrowings and trade and other payables are financial liabilities of revolving nature which will get renewed
as part of working capital management.

Capital risk management

The objective of the Company when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concem so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and to maintain a strong -
capital base to support the sustained development of its business.

The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring retum on net assets and makes adjustments to it in the
light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust
the amount of dividend paid to the sharcholders or issue new sharas.

L
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39.2 Fair values of financial assets and llabllities -

39.3

40

41

42

The carrying values of all financial assets and fiabilities reflected in these financial statements approximate their fair
values. Fair value is determined on the basis of objective evidence at each reporting date.

Financial instruments by categories

As at 30 June

Assets as per balance sheet
Trade debts

Loans and advances

" Deposits

Other receivables
Cash and bank balances

Liabilitles as per balance sheet

Long term financing

Liabilities against assets subject to finance leass
Short term borrowings

Trade and other payables

Accrued mark-up

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

Loans and receivables

2013 2012
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

3,832,218 3,650,116
43,443 47,245
22,908 21,363

140,292 120,961
. 525,632 925,384
4,564,493 4,665,069

Financlal liabilitles at
amortized cost

2013 2012
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

2,858,665 3,198,158
168,871 ° 147,316
7,590,117 5,088,907
2,150,483 2,025,016
184,305 173,918
12,952,441 10,637,315

These financial statements have been approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company

on 05 October 2013.

FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been re-arranged, wherever necessary for the purpose of comparison. However,

no significant re-arrangement has been made.

GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees unless otherwise stated.

. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

DIRECTOR

@
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1. Incorporation Number
2. Name of the Company

FORM 34

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON 30'JUNE, 2013
0012223

MASOOD TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
3. Pattern of holding of the shares held by the sharsholders as at 30.06.2013

[4. No. of shareholders

| L

Shareholdings

11

Total shares held |

ORDINARY SHARES:

659 Shareholding from 1to 100 Shares 47,703
547 Shareholding from 101 to 500 Shares 128,120
83 Shareholding from 501 to 1000 Shares 67,796
113 Shareholding from 1001 to 5000 Shares 288,316
23 Shareholding from 5001 to 10000 Shares 180,510
4 Shareholding from 10001 to 15000 Shares 54,150
4 Shareholding from 15001 to 20000 Shares 70,950
1 Shareholding from 20001 to 25000 Shares 21,500
4 Shareholding from 25001 to 30000 Shares 117,000
1 Shareholding from 30001 to 35000 Shares 35,000
1 Shareholding from 35001 to 40000 Shares 37,500
2 Shareholding from 45001 to 50000 Shares 100,000
1 Sharsholding from 55001 to 60000 Shares 60,000
1 Shareholding from 70001 to 75000 Shares 71,102
1 Sharaholding from 80001 to 85000 Shares 85,000
1 Shareholding from 90001 to 95000 Shares 92,605
1 Shareholding from 105001 to 110000 Shares 106,000
1 Shareholding from 165001 to 170000 Shares 167,000
1 Sharcholding from 195001 o 200000 Shares 196,500
1 Shareholding from 210001 1o 215000 Shares 211,000
1 Shareholding trom 370001 to 375000 Shares ‘373,000
1 Shareholding from 385001 o 380000 Shares 390,000
2 Shareholding from 390001 to 395000 Shares 784,036
1 Shareholding from A65001 to 470000 Shares 469,170
1 Shareholding from 540001 to 545000 Shares 541,000
1 Shareholding from 580001 to 585000 Shares 581,000
1 Shareholding from 695001 o 700000 Shares 700,000
1 Shareholding from 8915001 16 920000 Shares 916,050
1 Shareholding from 1380001 to 1385000 Shares 1,383,750
1 Shareholding from . 1810001 to 1915000 Shares 1,912,400
1 Shareholding from 2025001 to 2030000 Shares 2,025,828
1 Shargholding from 2455001 10 2460000 Shares 2,457,078
1 Shareholding from 28985001 to 2900000 Shares 2,900,000
1 Shareholding from 3885001 to 3800000 Shares 3,900,000
1 Shareholding from 4110001 to 4115000 Shares 4,114,000
1 Shareholding from 4580001 to 4595000 Shares 4,593,662
1 Shareholding from 5780001 to 5785000 Shares 5,780,974
1 Shareholding from 5340001 to 5945000 Shares 5,940,300
1 Shareholding from 18095001 t0 18100000 Shares 18,100,000
1470 | [Totat: | | 60,000,000 |

©
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@

PREFERENCE SHARES:
1 Shareholding from 985001 to 1000000 Shares 1,000,000
1 Shareholding from 2495001 to 2500000 Shares 2,500,000
3 Shareholding from - 4995001 1o 5000000 Shares 15,000,000
1 Shareholding from 9995001 10 10000000 Shares 10,000,000
1 Shareholding from 10895001 1o 11000000 Shares 11,000,000
| 7 | [fotal | | 39,500,000 |
. [5. Categories of shareholders | share held | Percentage |
ORDINARY SHARES:
5.1 Directors, Chief Executive Officer, etc. 1.521.500 254
L) ¥ .
5.2 Associaled Companies, undertakings and related . .
parties.
53 NITand ICP 2,026,678 | | 3.38 |
5.4 Banks, Development Financial Institutions, Non Banking
Financial Institutions. 4,987,481 8.31
55 Insurance Companies 7 - | 401,444 | | _ 0.67 |
5.6 Modarabas and Mutual Funds | 474,670 | | 0.79 |
5.7 Share holders holding 10% | 18,100,000 | | 30.17 ]
5.8 General Public
a. Local 7,287,815 12.14
b. Foreign - -
5.9 Others - Joint Stock Companies/Co-oparative Societies. 25 200,412 42.00
¥ 1 .
Total Ordinary Shares | 60,000,000 | | 100.00 |
PREFERENCE SHARES:
5.3 Banks, Development Financial Institutions, Non Banking
Financial insfitutions. 39,500,000 100.00
6. Signature of Company Secretary
7. Name of Signatory | MIAN ABDUL BARI |
8. Designation | COMPANY SECRETARY |
9. CNIC Number [aJa]1JoJo]-T78fe[1[a1]s]-Ja]"
D'ay Month Year
10. Date [0]s5] [1Jo] [2]o]1][3]
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NAMEWISE CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS AS ON 30-06-2013

- | Name - - | Shares Held | Total Shares | Percentage |
ORDINARY SHARES ‘ '
Directors:

MR. SHAHID NAZIR AHMAD Chief Executive Officer 1,383,750
MR. NASEER AHMAD SHAH: Chairman 37,500
MR. MUHAMMAD ARSHAD Director 18,750
MR. FAZAL AHMAD Director . 30,000
MR. SHAHID IQBAL Director 30,000
MR. MATLOOB HUSSAIN Director | 21500
MR. MUHAMMAD YOUSUF MEMON  Director - 1,521,500 2.54
{NIT Nominee)

Shareholders Holding 1_0% or More:
MRS. NAZIA NAZIR ‘| 18,100,000 18,100,000 30.16

Associated Undertakings: ' o - - -

Investment Com panies:
PAKISTAN KUWAIT INVSTMENT COMPANY (PVT) LIMITED - 2,600 .
INVESTMENT CORPORATION OF PAKISTAN 850 3,450 0.01

Financial Institutlons:

Banks: . .
IDBP ({CP UNIT) ‘ 3,250
NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN 4,594,231 ,
THE BANK OF PUNJAB, TREASURY DIVISION 390,000 4,987,481 8.31
Insurance Companies
AGRO GENERAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 7,694
DELTA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED . 1,100
' STATE LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION OF PAKISTAN 392,750 401,444 0.67
Modarabas 4
THIRD PRUDENTIAL MODARABA 4,900
UNICAP MODARABA ' 600 5500 0.01
Mutual Fund
GOLDEN ARROW SELECTED STOCKS FUND LIMITED 469,170
NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN-TRUSTEE '
DEPARTMENT NI(U)T FUND 2,025,828 2,494,998 4.16
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| Name

Shares Held | Total Shares | Percentage

Joint Stock Companies And Others
Aizad Corporation (Pvt) Limited

Beacon Impex (Pvt) Limited

Darson Securities (Pvt) Limited

Fortress Textiles (Pvt) Limited

H M Investments (Pvt) Limited

Highlink Capital (Pvt) Limited

tsmail Abdul Shakoor Securities (Pvt) Limited
Kohistan Corporation (Pvt) Limited

Maan Securities (Pvt) Limited

Masood Impex (Pvt) Limited

NH Securities (Pvt) Limited

Pasha Securities (Pvt) Limited

Pearl Securities {Pvt) Limited ’
Prudential Capital Management Limited
Savari (Pvt) Limited

Software Creations (Pvt) Limited

Time Securities {Pvt) Limited
Y.S.Securities & Services (Pv) Limited
Trustee NBP EMP Benevolent Fund Trust
Trustee NBP Employees Pension Fund

General Public:
TOTAL ORIDINANRY SHARES

PREFERENCE SHARES

Banks:

ASKARI BANK LIMITED

HABIB BANK LIMITED

MCB BANK LIMITED

NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN
SILK BANK LIMITED

UNITED BANK LIMITED

Investment Companies:
PAKISTAN KUWAIT INVESTMENT COMPANY (PVT) LIMITED

54

TOTAL PREFERENCE SHARES

5,780,974
1,922,400
1,200
3,038,078
4,900
4,500
50
3,900,000
5
5,940,300
5
100
391,286
1,600
900
4,114,000
1,500
160
3,249
92,605 | 25,197,812 42.00
7,287,815 12.14
60,000,000 100.00
. 2,500,000
- 10,000,000
- 5,000,000
- 5,000,000
. 1,000,000
. 11,000,000
‘ 34,500,000 87.34
- 5,000,000 12.66
39,500,000 100.00
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FORM OF PROXY

No. of Ordinary Shares Held. Folio No. CDC A/c No.

i/We,

of

being a member of MASOOD TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED hereby appoint

(NAME)
of

{being a member of the Company) as my/our proxy to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the
29" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at its Registered Office at Universal -

House, West Canal Road, Farooqabad, Faisalabad on Thursday, the 319 day of October, 2013
at 11:00 A.M. or any adjournment thereof. '

As witnessed my hands this | day of 2013

Signed by me in the presence of witness:

(Signature of withess) (Member’s Signature)
CNIC. CNIC.
Five Rupees
Revenue
Stamp

Note: Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received at the Company's Registered Office not later than
forty-eight hours before the time for holding the meeting and must be duly stamped, signed and witnessed.






